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TOTHEFIFTH GRADE PUPILS:

In 1976 our nationisobservingitsbicentennia and for the DesMoines Schoolsit will mark our 130th
birthday. In marking the ages of political institutionsboth datesnotelongevity. Inthe balance of agesof
civilization, itisashortinterva. Our bicentennial isatimefor joy inour accomplishmentsand for solemn
reflection onthefuture.

Asstudentsyouwill learn many thingsin your study of 1owahistory and the geography of thestate. In
variousbooksyou will learn about historica eventspertaining to the entire state. Thissupplementary bookl et
will provide many historical highlightsof the devel opment of schoolswithinthecity of DesMoines. This
local history will give many detailsthat could not beincorporated in books used throughout the state of
lowa

Through theyearsthecitizens of Des M oineshave demonstrated their belief in the val ues of education by
providing excellent school buildings, adequatetextbooksand awell-educated staff of teachers.

The chancesarethat you have always accepted the fact that you had a school to attend. It wasthere. It had
aname, possi bly for some president such asWashington, Jefferson or Jackson, or for somelocal person
such asRice, Hubbell or Watrous. Did you ever stop to observe that most Des M oines School s have had
one or more sectionsadded at onetime or another? When werethey built? Where did the names come
from that were used for the buildings? Theseare afew of the questionsthat might be asked.

Onthefollowing pagesyou will find ahistory of the DesM oinesIndependent Community School Didtrict.
Youwill find that thisnameisavery recent onesinceit wasacquired only in 1957. The history onthe
ensuing pages coversthe period 1846-1976. You will discover that the present school district includesall or
part of 24 different school districtsthat formerly existed.

A proud school heritageisyours. Thereisapast filled with change and new ideas. Youwill find the Des
M oines School s have kept pacewith the challenges of anew community, anew state, and anew nation.

-Dr. Robert R. Denny
Ass stant Superintendent for Education
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TOTHESTUDENTS:

You areliving at aspecial time--the cel ebration of the 200th anniversary of our country. The Bicentennial
bringsan awareness of and interest in our heritage, our past, and the men and women who provided the
leadership during our early history. We study the past in order to make wise decisionsin the present and
hopeto avoid mistakesinthefuture.

Asyou study the history of lowa, you become aware of lowasheritage. Asapart of lowashistory, the
history of the Des M oines Public Schools showsthe heritage of aprogressive and aert school system. It
showshow thiscommunity met needs, challenges, and problemsthroughout the schools one hundred and
thirty years. Peopleworked hard to continually improve and build upon an outstanding school system.

Thefuturewill show continued changesasthey are needed to meet the opportunitiesand challengesof the
last quarter of thetwentieth century and the beginning of thetwenty-first. DesMoinesisagood placeto
live. Oursisthelargest school districtinlowa, and itscitizens, school people, and educational programs
meet the needs of today'syouth and will chart arewarding coursefor the years ahead.

-Dr. Dwight M. Davis Superintendent of Schools
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Bicentennid Reflections

Schoolsand education have changed agreat deal from 1776 to 1976. In these 200 yearsthe schoolshave
tended to reflect theidesas, aspirationsand daily life of the American people morethan any other institution.
Throughout thesetwo centuriesthe school boards have becomethe closest political subdivisontothe
peoplethan any other aspect of city, Sate, or federal governmenta agencies. Because of thisproximity, the
school s have been and continueto be responsive to the demandsand will of the people.

During thefirst half of the 19th century Americansturned Increasingly to education astheanswer for the
nation’spoliticd, socid, religious, and economic problems. In 1832 during hisfirst candidacy for thelllinois
House of Representatives, Abraham Lincoln called education the most important subject which Americans
asapeople could be engaged. Thomas Jefferson was one who spoke out on many occasi ons about the
importance of education. Very few persons doubted the Jeffersonian statement that anation could not long
remainignorant and free. However, in the United Stateswhich wasmainly agrarian, the common school of
eight gradeswas deemed sati sfactory and sufficient for most students. For afew who wished advanced
training and would be college bound the private academieswerethe main routeto go.

Horace Mann, secretary to the Board of Education of the Commonweal th of M assachusetts between 1837
and 1848, was an early leader in the public school movement. Mann’s often quoted statement wasthe
educationis*thegreat equalizer, the conditions of men, the balancewhed of thesocia machinery.”

Thefirst high school established wasthe Boston English, opened in 1821, and by the start of the Civil War,
Massachusetts had 103 high school s or roughly oneto every threetownsand cities. Historicaly, the popular
sentiment for replacing the private academieswith anew sort of ingtitution, the public high schoal, first
surfaced inalarge measurein the 1830’ sand continued to spread during the next few decades.

Asindicated abovethefirst public high school beganin 1821, but therewere no morethan 100 public high
schoolsby 1850. The 1874 Ka amazoo decision of the Michigan Supreme Court stated that the high school
wasapart of thecommon school system and that the establishment of the high school wasimpliedinthe
state constitution. Thus, it becamelegal to tax property to support ahigh school unit that would befreeand
opentoall.

Thehigh school had been dow in devel oping because of repeated challenges by taxpayersfor using public
moniesfor theeducation of a“small, privileged portion of the population.” The Kaamazoo decision of 1874
wasoneof thoselandmark decisionswhich opened theway for the establishment of the high school
throughout the nation and in timefor its acceptance asan approved path for still higher education. The“free”
high school sthus established spell ed the decline of the private academiesthat charged tuition.

Evenwith theestablishmentsof freehigh school sin many communitiestherewere oftenrelatively few high
school graduatesinasmuch asthe labor market could absorb studentswho had six, seven, or eight years of
schooling. Recall that the United Stateswas basically an agrarian society and the need for skilled |abor was
just beginning to berequired by the needs of theindustrial revolution. Asamoretechnological society
emerged so wasthere an increased demand for more educated workers.
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Contrary to genera belief initsearly history inthe mid-1800sthe high school wasnot popul ar with the
working class. They tended to view it asan upper classingtitution, irrelevant to their aspirationsand impos-
sblefor themto utilize since adol escent earningswereimportant to thefamily.

In DesMoines, the West Des M oines Public School sinaugurated ahigh school in 1864. Thefirst graduates
werein 1868. High school graduating classes numbered anywherefrom four to six for anumber of years.
The East DesMoines Public Schoolslaunched their high school in 1866 and thefirst high school graduate
was Elizabeth Matthewsin 1871. The high schoolsinthe West Des M oines Public School Didtrict, East

DesMoinesPublic School Digtrict, North DesMoines Public School District, Capital Park Public School
District and Grant Park Public School Digtrict aswell asthetwenty other suburban districts such as Green-
wood, Oak Park, Oak Dale, and Chesterfield housed grades 9-12 on the upper floor of one of their
grammar school buildingsfor anumber of years. Later in thisbookl et the history of the high schoolsisgiven
and the buildingsthat were built to accommodate them. The point isthat therewas not abig demand by
parentsfor high school education for their children. Thosewho did attend high school weremainly the
college-bound students and they were attending the high school instead of the private academy.

Land Grant Colleges

TheMorrill Act of 1862 was another development inliberalizing accessto higher education with the estab-
lishment of land grant colleges. TheMorrill Act which authorized these colleges-in lowa, lowaState Univer-
sty at Ames, for example, represented thefirst direction on the part of the national government to provide
educational opportunity. It isinteresting that thisgovernmental action wasfirst gpplied to the one community,
theagricultural, which wasnational and which had definable needsand the power to expressthese needs. It
wasalandmark decision, too, inasmuch asit introduced anew political ideathat despitethe constitutional
restrictionson the power of thefederal government to manage and control education, the government could
neverthel ess support and facilitate the devel opment of specific formsof education whenever such develop-
ment was determined to bein the national interest.

Smith-HughesAct of 1917

Another landmark piece of legidation wasthe Smith-HughesAct of 1917 which provided thefirst major
federal fiscal support for schools. It wasacategorical aid measureinvolving federal supervision over the
expenditure of the authorized funds. Thisvocationa education act wasamed at improving educationin
agricultural andindustrial subjects, thetrades and home economicsin public secondary schoolsby the
origina maximum authorization of $7,000,000 ayear to be used for training teachersin these subjects,
partial payment of their salaries, and research into the needs and provisionsfor such education. However, in
order to participate, the states had to accept the law and submit specific plansfor federal approval and
matching federa monies.

The Smith-HughesA ct wasfurther reinforced by the George-Deen Law in 1936 which wasreplaced by the
George-Barten Law in 1946. Thisbroadened the program by involving more aspects of home economics
and family living and strengthened the program through teacher education.

Thevocational education act of 1963 and the vocational education act of 1968 further stimulated education
intheareaof home economics.
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A third categorical aid programwaslaunchedin 1958
and wasknown asthe National Defense EducationAct.
It contained an equalization formulaand alocated funds
to private aswell as public schools. Asthe namewoul d
imply, the act was based on the concern for national
security asit related to American scientific and technical
competence. Under Titlel1 of theact, $70,000,000
wasauthorized for the purchase of equipment and
remodeling of facilitiesfor instruction in science, math-
ematicsand foreignlanguagesin schoals.

The NDEA was modified and expanded by subsequent
legidation. Part of thischangetaking placewasthe
addition of history, civics, geography, economics,
English, and reading to the categoriesin Titlelll.

Three mgjor educational revolutionshave occurredin
thelast 100 years,

1. Inthe 1830sHorrace Mann’'sideathat agrammar
school educationwasa right for every child.

2.1n 1874 the Kalamazoo decis onwhich authorized
publicfundsfor high schoals.

3. TheGl Bill of Rightsof 1944. Thislaunched athird
revol ution by opening higher education to millionsof
Americans. In 1971 it has been estimated that over
eleven million personshad availed themsalves of the
benefitsoffered by thisand succeeding bills.

Many historianshave rated the Servicemen’sReadjust-
ment Act of 1944 asone of the most enlightened pieces
of legidation ever enacted by the Congress of the United
States. It made collegeareslity for millionswho had
never seentheinsideof aningtitution of higher learning.

It not only broadened their educational attainmentsbut
alsoraised thesightsfor thesemen and thefamiliesthat
they had. It set another higher rung on the educational
ladder asan achievement that waswithin thegrasp and
possibility for millionsmoreof Americans.

Evenjudged by gtrictly financid terms, investmentinthe
Gl Bill programswas an outstanding success. In genera
the higher aperson’seducationd level, the higher his
incomewill tendto be. Thiswasafact amply demon-
strated by the experience of millionsof veteranswho
had been assisted under the provisionsof the Gl Bill.

Page 12



President Lyndon Johnson stated that the added taxeson
the higher incomesthus made possibleamounted inthe
year 1966 to an estimated $60 billion. Sincethe cost of the
two programs cameto approximately $19 billion, they had
at that point already paid for themselvesthreetimesover.

Early Schoolsin DesMoines

Thehistory of educationin DesM oinesgoesback almost
asfar asthehistory of thecity itself. Thereissomeques-
tion asto who conducted the very first school. Records
show that thereweretwo established inthe sameyear-in
thefall and winter of 1846-1847. Both schoolswere held
in cabinsaong Raccoon Row. Mr. LewisWhittenwasthe
teacher of oneand MissMary Davisof theother. These
schoolswerecalled * subscription School's, sincethe
expenseswere paid by the parentsof the pupils.

Thefirst school district wasorganizedin 1849, four years
prior to theincorporation of thetown of Fort DesMoines.
About sixty dollarswas appropriated for the use of the
school district during the 1849-50 school year. School
costswere also defrayed by atuition charge of $2.50 per
pupil for theterm of twelve weeks. The Methodist Church
wasthe meeting place of thefirst school, and later it was
moved tothe‘new’ courthouse. Becausethebuilding was
not yet finished, it wasacold and uncomfortablelearning
situation. At theend of thefirst term of threemonthsthe
teacher, Byron Rice, suggested that school be dropped
temporarily. Mr. Ricelater became aprominent banker
and judge.

In 1851 the sum of $100 was appropriated to purchasea
half acre of ground at Ninth and Locust onwhichto erect
aschool building. Thefirst tax for the erection of aschool
buildingwasleviedin 1854. TheThird Ward School (or
“Brick School House,” asit wascalled) was opened for
school in 1856. It had cost the staggering sum -of $8,000.
Therewerefour departmentsand four teacherswhen it
opened. A bronze plague has been placed on thefront of
the present building at 9th and L ocust to commemoratethe
site, of thefirst public school in DesMoines.
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West Side Schoolsin 1860's

Thewest side enrollmentsof the 1860’ sincreased sothat in
afew yearsadditional space had to be rented to accommo-
datethe pupils. InApril, 1869, the school board purchased
anew siteat Tenth and Pleasant, to replacethe Third Ward
School at 9th and Locust. Thenew unit waslater named
Irving School.

DesMoines School History

OnMay 30, 1864, acommitteein the West DesMoines
school swas appointed to examine and report about the
advisability of establishing ahigh schoal for thefollowing
fal. OnJuly 1, 1864, they decided, upon afavorablereport
of thecommittee, to establish ahigh school and to openitin
the second ward building (Crocker) at Sixth and School.
Mr. Barredls, the County Superintendent, wasregquested to
furnisha“courseof study” and disciplinefor thesame. The
board elected Mr. Barrelsasprincipal at asalary of $100
per month. Therecordsshowsthat Mr. Barrelswasfirst,
county superintendent; second, principal of thehigh school
and thirdly, acongregational minister. Apparently thecitizens
of 1864 were not overly concerned with the separation of
Churchand State. It isrecorded that when Mr. Barrels
found it necessary to visit the outlying schoolsof Polk
County that Mr. J. A. Nash substituted for him asthehigh
school principal.

At ameeting of the Board of Education, October 1, 1864,
acommittee was appointed to classify the schoolsand draft
acourseof study. However, the committeerecorded on
October 24 that they had not been ableto preparethe
courseof study owing to the excitement caused throughout
the state by the presence of Confederaterebel raiders.
They requested moretimeand the course of study was
received November 9, amended and adopted.

DesMoineswasgrowing very rapidly during thisCivil War
period and the school swere becoming more and more
crowded. The organization of the high school mademore
room necessary and in 1867 aproposition providing for a
special tax for the erection of aschool was submitted to the
voters. The proposition lost. The crowded conditions
continued producing much discomfort, even thewindow
was soon became seatsfor students.
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When adiscontented parent complained to the president of
the board about the crowded conditionsand lack of seats, he
was asked by the board president “ Did you voteon the
proposition for more seatsor against more seats?’ If the
parent confessed that he had voted against thisbond issue, he
wastold that in that case hischild must continueto sitinthe
window.

First graduating class

Thefirst graduating classexercisesfrom theWest Des
Moines Public Schoolswasin 1868. Therewerefour mem-
bersof theclass,, oneboy and threegirls. Thismatter of the
girlsoutnumbering the boys continued throughout most of the
1800's.

Theold high school classeswhichwerehoused origindly ina
few roomsat the top of old Crocker school at 6th & School
(now 6th & Freeway), weremovedinthefall of 1868 tothe
oldthird ward building at the corner of Sth & Locust. This
wasan old building and one morning during the opening
devotiona exercisestheplaster fromtheentireceilingfell
upon the heads bowed in prayer. Amidst the criesand groans
that followed, itisrecorded that the prayer remained unfin-
ished. (Thiswasamatter before supreme court decision.)
With the sad state of repair of thisold building thevoters
finally agreed toissuebondsfor anew building and the
resulting structure wasameagnificent edificeknownasLincoln
School at 9th & Mulberry. (Thisisthe present siteonwhich
themainfirestationisbuilt today-inthe1970's.)

Deplorable condition for ahigh school building.

A good ideaof how difficult the school house situation was
may, be gained from thefollowing clipping fromthelowa
State Register of March 9, 1865; “ Thethird ward buildingis
amiserable structure never adapted for school purposesand
asyearsgo by it becomesmoreand moreunsuitable. Ina
very few yearsthis place must be supplied by anew one. By
usingittoitsfull capacity with the other two schoolhousesthe
accommodations can be furnished to only two out of every
fivechildreninthisschool district”. Evidently school atten-
dancewasnot mandatory inthisera

Asnoted abovethecitizensdid votefor anew school and
Lincoln school was described asthelargest and best building
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of thewest, costing at thetimeit was erected some
$80,000. Some newspaper reports point out that it was
erected inthe heart of one of theresidentia districtsinthe

aity.

TheLincoln buildingwhichispictured herewas somewhat
reminiscent of castlesout of England. Noticethemany
chimneysthat adorned the building; they werenot for looks
but for thesmple expedient of fireplacesthat were used to
hest thislarge structure. Lincoln housed al the high school
studentsnot only from the West Des M oines school

district, which wasthat areawhichisbasicaly downtown
DesMoinesat the present time, but alsoincluded those
who lived south of the Raccoon River whichisnow the
present southside DesMoines.

West High School had alady principal by the name of
Miss Charlotte Mann in the 1870’ swho was aniece of
Horace Mann. Therecords show that MissMannmarried
the president of the school board and became Mrs.
Cooper. MissMannwas principal from 1871-72. Itis
pointed out that therewere other women principal s of
West High through theyears; Mrs. Louise Morrow was
principal 1886-1888. Shewas succeeded, by aCelia
Ford, principal, 1888-1890. No other names of women
principal sappesar for West High from thispoint on. Inthe
samevein of recognizing out- standing women, May
Goodréll, of course, wasthe outstanding principal of East
High School for many yearsand in turnjoined the central
staff and becamethe director of what isnow the Pupil
ServicesDepartment.

A continued growth of DesMoinesand theincreasing
school population soon made even the new magnificent
Lincoln schoal building overcrowded. Therewasade-
mand by moreand more citizensfor an adequate high
school building to serve students adequately. The prosper-
ity inthenation of the 1870's, and 1880’ swas such that
peoplewere demanding more education for their young
people. Businesswasbooming and therewasgeneral
prosperity. Just asthe previous school buildingsbecame
crowded, history continued to repeet itself. Theninthe
year 1888 it was decided that anew building should be
erected at 15th & Center and that the high school unit
whichwason thetop floor of theLincoln building at 9th &
Mulberry should be abandoned. A splendid three-story red
brick building wasdedicated April 19, 1889, withimposing
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ceremonies, music, speechesand, of course, aflag presentation by the Grand Army of the Republic. One
of the speakersremarked: “\We have now anew building capable of furnishing room enough for the next
twenty years.” The magnificent structurewasWest High. Theoriginal West High had alarge bell tower
and called for ahuge clock that would strike every quarter hour. However the neighboring residentsinthe
fashionable homesthat werein the areastrenuously objected and theworksto the clock were never
installed. Neverthelessthefour sides of the hugetimepiece were adorned with theidle faces of the clock
until after afirein theteens caused the entiretower structureto berazed.

Thearchitects, Foster and Lieebe, visited schoolsin Chicago, Minneapolisand St. Paul in order to secure
ideasand information regarding the most modern methods of heating, lighting and ventilation for thisnew
structure. Theoffice of the superintendent and the board officeswereall included in the new West High
whenit opened. All theroomswere beautifully and luxurioudly furnished with fashionable woodwork,
furnitureand “rugsof good quality” . Themost modern and compl ete science equipment wasinstalled,
$1,000 being spent upon chemical apparatusaone. Reports state that noteworthy among thesewasa

K ershoff and Bunson spectroscope and Becker balance madein Rotterdam. The new building wasthe
showplace of the state and hundreds of visitorsand educatorscamefromall over tolook at the building
and to get ideasto take back for schoolsthey were constructing intheir homeareas. Thelibrary, for
example, had acollection of some 460 volumes.

Itisinteresting to noticethat they called thisWest High and Industrial School. Coursesof study offered
were, English, Latin, scientific, classic and business. All of thesewith the single exception of thebusiness
courserequired four yearsof study and led to adiplomaof graduation. The business course demanded
only two years of endeavor of work and upon compl etion of their hard work the student received aspecia
certificate but no diploma. Theclassical coursewastheregular college preparatory course andincluded
Greek.

Inthefall of 1889 manual training and home economicswere added to the curriculum. Thesetwo subjects
wereintroduced to the schoolsby Mr. and Mrs. R. H. Miller who had been recruited fromasimilar
position wherethey had taught in Toledo, Ohio, prior to coming to DesMoines. Alsoin 1889 shorthand
and typewriting wereintroduced to the curriculum by Mr. Clay Slinker.

History of East DesMoines School District

The schoolsof the city of DesMoineswerefirst under the control of one board of education. Among the
itemsinthereportsof the officersof thedistrict appear claimsthat they settled for rent and fuel for rooms
“usedin East DesMoines.” Children of the East Side were accommodated with school facilitiesin rented
rooms. Thefirst housein East DesMoinesfor school purposes of which we have definiteinformationwas
asmall framebuilding that stood near the corner of East 9th & Grand.

Therecordsalso show that therewere al so severa private schools operated in the eastern part of Des

Moines. One of the private or subscription schoolsof the city of DesMoineswasfirst under the control of
onedistrict onland now occupied by the Jewett L umber Company.
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Independent Digtrict Organized

The Independent School District of DesMoines, East Side, wasorganized in 1859. The organizational
meeting was held at the state capitol building. Facilitieswererentedinthe Griffith block inthe East Des
Moinescentral district and operated therefor severa years, then it wasmoved to abuilding south of the
Northwestern Depot on East Fourth. After being therefor ayear or two the school went back to the
Griffith Block whereit remained until aschool building could befinanced and erected

First Buildingfor East High

The East DesMoines School District remai ned without aseparate schoolhouse of itsown until theyear
1866. For many yearstheinterested citizens of East DesMoineswere activein trying to get the taxpay-
ersto vote bond money with which to build aschool house, however, they did not have good response
fromthevoters.

Itisimportant to recall that in those days schoal districtshad to tax themselvesdirectly on anannual
budget for the money with which to construct school houses. Therewasno authority or way for raising
money by issuance of bonds. Thusadistrict that wanted anything intheway of agood-sized school
building had to tax themselvesfor aseries of yearsand | et thefunds accumulatefor that purpose. Inthe
East DesMoinesdistrict therewasaconstant struggle year after year to get themoney for aschool
house, however, thevoting of oneyear’ stax gave no assurance that another timethe peoplewould fedl
thesameway.

Bryant School at Pennsylvaniaand Grand Avenuewasthefirst school builtin East DesMoines. A
picture of thisbuildingisgiven below. When Bryant School wascompleted it was said to bethelargest
and finest school houseinthewestern half of thestate. In 1975 it isdifficult to visuaize the problemsthat
they had in even securing materialsin DesMoinesfor thisschool building. Thelumber had to behauled
by horse-drawn wagon from Nevada, |owa, sincethat wasthe nearest railroad shipping point from
whichto securethe materials. Similarly, cement and other itemsof thisnature, nailsand anything to be
used in congtruction, that came by railroad from the East or from other points, had to beleftin Nevada,
and then laboriously and dowly hauled by teamsto the building sites. The records show that before
Bryant was completed, however, that the DesM oinesValley Road had begun to run trainsinto Des
Moines. Thissmall footnotein history pointsup the valueand importance of railroad transportationinthe
last century. It wasavita link to the out- sdeworld and greatly affected the cost of materialsusedin
construction aswell asitemsusedin everyday living. The 1881 annual report of the Board of Tradegave
thefollowingfiguresintheincrease of populationin DesMoines:

1846 —— 127 inhabitants 1870 —— 12,035
1850 —— 502 1875 —— 15,782
1860 —— 3,965 1880 —— 22,696
1865 —— 5,650 1881 —— 25,397

From these statiticsit can be seen that there woul d be atremendous growth in the number of school
population of students. Admittedly from the recordswe know that therewasnot agreat deal of pressure
for studentsto attend school for any great length of time, but it was becoming moreand moreimportant
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to servethoseyoungstersin those familieswho demanded
and wanted education. Thusthe East DesMoines schools
began to grow and the need for more buildingsbecame
apparent.

In 1874 the East DesMoines District built asecond school at
the corner of East Sixth and Raccoon with four rooms. It was
greatly enlarged afterwardsto servethe studentsthere. This
building incidently wasutilized until the 1950’ swhen Dunlap
School wasbuilt at Southeast 11th and Railroad Streetsto
servethe studentsin the southeast area.

In 1875 they built L ucas School at East 16th and Capitol.
In 1877 the demands of the school population of the east
side became so urgent that the board asked the district to
authorizealoan of $30,000 for the construction of aschool
at thecorner of E. 12th and Lyon. Thisproposal carried.

Namesfor the school buildings

It had been the custom of both the East DesMoines District
and theWest DesMoines Didtrict to nametheir schoolsby
wardsand indeed it appeared that the school directors
probably were e ected from the variouswardswithin a,
school digtrict. Finally, in 1880 the East DesMoinesboard
decided that the school buildings should be named and that
thiswould beamorefitting and proper way to refer to them.
Thefirst onethat they had built a Pennsylvaniaand Grand
wascalled Bryant after the poet, William Cullen Bryant. The
second or seventh ward school wasnamed Curtis. Thename
Curtiswas sel ected because of thefact that Genera Curtis
had been asomewhat extensive owner of property inthe east
side. The school constructed at 16th and Capitol wascalled
Lucasafter thefirst governor of lowaand thebuilding on
East 12th and Lyon wascalled Webster for thefamous
lexicographer of the nation. A rented roomin the southeastern
portion of the East DesMoinesdistrict, commonly caledthe
“porkhouse” school becauseit wasintended to accommo-
datethe children of themenwhowereemployedinthe
packing houses, was given the name of Bentonin honor of
ThomasH. Benton, for severa yearsthe head of the State
Department of Public Instruction. A picture of Benton School
isgivenbelow.
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Inthefall of 1880 the board rented aroom in the basement
of aSwedish church which stood at the corner of Des
Moinesand E. 2nd Avenue and started aschool there. The
preva ence of the Swedish nationaity inthat part of thecity
at that timewasthe reason for the board naming the new
undertaking after Sweden’ sauthor and traveler, Frederica
Bremer.

East High School

East High was started on thetop floor of Bryant School at
E. 9thand Grand.

Inchronological order East High hasexisted asfollows:
1861-1877 - Bryant School, top floor, E. 9th and Grand
1877-1891 - Webster School, top floor E. 12th and Lyon
1891-1911 - East High, E. 12th and Court
1911 to present at E. 13th and Walker

In 1887 thefreshman class of East High was moved back to
Bryant dueto overcrowding. In 1890 the East DesMoines
School Board obtained authority fromthevotersfor the
erection of agpecia high school building to belocatedinthe
corner of E. 12th and Court Avenue. East High wasdedi-
cated March 5, 1891. Thismagnificent building ispictured
below.

The East High building was planned and carried out under
the super- vision of the most popular superintendent of the
East DesMoinesDidtrict and theonewith thelongest
tenure-Superintendent Amos Hiatt. Superintendent Hiatt
assumed hisdutiesin 1885 and continued for admost two
decades (1895-1903).

Thegreat new building at E. 12th and Court continued to
serveasahigh school until overcrowding becameareal
problem. By thistimethe East DesM oines schoolshad
merged with the West Des M oines schoolsto formthe Des
MoinesIndependent School District and thethird and final
location of East High School occurredin 1911 when anew
East High School wasbuilt at E. 13th and Walker.

The East DesMoines School District continued to expand

through theyearswith anumber of other buildingsbeing
built. Thesearetouched on very briefly asfollows:
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In 1882 alarge school building waserected on Pineand called Longfellow School. That sameyear Lucas
School wasenlarged. In 1884 Emerson School wasbuilt at E. 16th and Maple. Benton School at S. E.
12th and Shaw wasgreatly enlarged to accommodate the studentsin that area. Therewasalargeaddition
built for Bremer School at Second and Des M oines. With the continued populationin and around the
Webster School site aseparate three-room school house was erected on the Webster grounds. Thiswas
calledthe LouisaMay Alleott building for the popular authoress of the day.

The East DesMoines school s hired subject areasupervisorsto assist intheimprovement of instruction.
They maintained aspecial teacher in drawing aswell asasupervisor of physical culturewhowasalso an
accomplished gymnast. They a so had asupervisor of music on the staff. Some of the old reportsreflect the
stressthat waslaid upon school attendancefor thoseenrolled, aswell asthe matter of punctuality. The
following figureswerereported: The percentage of attendance to number belonging wasin 1886-90.30 and
in 1896—95.80. The percentage of punctuality wasin theformer year--99.4 and thelast year--99.8.

Other Suburban Districts

It wasrecognized that the West Des M oines School District wasthelargest of the so-called urban districts
serving thisarea. The second largest, of course, wasthe East DesMoines School Digtrict. Inaddition there
wereanumber of other nelghborhood school districtsand indeed many of these were separate political
entitiesthat werelater merged into theforming of the City of DesMoines.

Oneof thesedistrictswasthe Capitol Park School System which wasorganized April 4, 1874. It wasthe
areain and around Union Park and Grand View College, to giveagenera geographical location. Itsprop-
erty consisted of the Capitol Park High School whichisstill retainedinthe old part of the present Wallace
Schooal at E. 13th and Polk (now Washington). The high school waslocated on thetop floor of the building.
Thisbuilding ispictured below. Alsointhe Capitol Park School System werethese units: Whittier School at
E. 14th and Washington; Grand View School at E. 9th and Hull; (Cattell) and L ogan School E. 17th and
Garfield aswell asawooden school known as Pleasant Corner.

A report statesasfollows about thisdigtrict:

“Probably no digtrict in the state of the size and wealth of Capital Park can make abetter showing. Many
of the best citizens of the Park have served on the board of education and given freely of their timeand
services”

Capita Park High School wasaccredited by the NCA in 1905. Certainly thiswasno small indication of the
educationd indtitutionthat they maintained.

Infootball Capital Park High School had an outstanding record. They played theusua high schoolsin Des
Moines, East High and West High. They also ranged out over the state and played Waterl oo High School
and OttumwaHigh School plusahigh school in Chicago, aswell asHigh- land Park College. Unfortunately
when they played Highland Park Collegein 1903 the College score was 33 and Capital Park was 6. They
fared somewhat better when they played the Ft. DesMoines cavalry troop team. Thiswastheregular U. S.
Army stationed at Ft. DesMoines. The scorein 1905 was Capital Park High School, 86 and FL Des
MoinesCavalry, 0. A report from that gamewas asfollows:. “ The cavalry men were much heavier but were
unskilled intheart of football.”
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Dutiesof Early Board Members

A note should be said in passing about the duties of the
early membersof the board of educationinthe 1300's
and continuinginto theearly 1900’'s. Thiswasan erain
which the school superintendency had not emerged asa
strong leadership rolefor the piloting of the school
system, asit were, over therough shoals of contro-
versy. The superintendent’srole of updating programs
and carrving out curriculum improvement that we now
haveinthelast haf of the 20th century had not been
perceived. Board membersof these early timespartici-
pated vigoroudy, enthusiagtically and directly inthe
affairsof running the school digtrict. They had commit-
teesinwhichthey took charge of the affairsof that
area. Typica of the standing committeesin most of
these districtswerethosethat arelisted inthe 1897
report of the East DesMoines School Didtrict. The
standing committeeswere:

1. Buildingsand grounds 2. Ingtruction
3. Finance 4. Supplies
5. Janitors 6. Printing

Thedutiesof thesecommitteesareasfollows: The
committeeon buildingsand groundsshal havegenerd
supervision of theproperty of thedistrict. The commit-
teeon finance shall examine and audit the accounts of
all schoal officers, make estimates of the expenses of
the school year and have general supervision of the
financid affairsof theschool digtrict.

Thecommitteeoningtructionin connectionwiththe
superintendent shal havethegenerd supervision of
teachers, textbooks, and the school work and shall
recommend to the board such changes asthewelfare of
the schoolsmay demand. The committee on supplies
shall beinchargeof al purchasing of dl suppliesand
apparatusfor usefor the schools. The committeeon
printing shall give orderspertaining to the school
digtrict’sprinting. Thecommitteeonjanitorsshal have
genera supervision of thejanitors, heating and ventila:
tion. In other words, school board memberstook a
very activeroleinvisiting school personnel, both
certified and noncertified, making suggestionsfor
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improvement, buying supplies, equipment, andin genera Ouale Park,

Eih and Modison

running the schools. Intime, these burdensbecametoo time
consuming. Also the public sought professiona leadership
for thesejobs. Thematter of hiring afull-time superintendent
plusass stantsin specia areasto runtheschool districtona
businesslike basiscameto bethe custom.

However, therewasgresat influenceinthesesmaller districts
by avigorousboard member. A particular board president
might best beillustrated by George N. Prink who was
elected to the board of education in the Capital Park
District in 1898. Hewas chosen president in 1901 by the
membersof theboard and held that position for three

consecutiveyears. Heworked diligently at getting the PR L, 0
Capital Park System operated so that they could be ac-
credited by NCA. Hebrought in winning coachessincethe
gameof football wasafairly new one. Heworkedfaith-
fully for theinterest of the Capital Park Schoolsand the
affluent areathat it represented. He promoted the sentiment
againgt consolidation withthe East DesMoinesPublic
Schoolsand sought to maintain astrong, vigorous, aca-
demic school system. The school yearbooksfrom Capital
Park were dedicated to President George N. Frink which
indicated that the students, and faculty appreciated his
dynamicleadership.

Henry Babin Behoal,
§th and Colleps
Grant Park School District

Grant Park School District waslocated in the Grant Park
subdivision at the eastern edge of the urban areaof Des
Moines. Grant Park School waslocated at 30th and Dean
onthepresent siteof Willard School. Theoriginal building
which housed the high school unitispictured below, There
were several other small school unitsthat fedintothisarea
ontheeast sde. We have pictured heretheoriginal Grant
Park School which faced east at thetime. (Pleaserecall that
the present viaduct along the eastern edge of theWillard

Saylar,

School groundswas not constructed until much later.) Euclid and Cambridge

Theyear of consolidation (1907) of some 20 school dis-
trictsto form the Independent Community School District of
DesMoaines, saw theinclusion of the Grant Park High
School Didtrict. The Grant Park building that ispictured was
continued asaK-8 unit after the consolidation. A
disasterousfire broke out on December 14, 1923, and
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burned most of the origina Grant Park building. How-
ever, thefiremen were ableto save part of theeastern
portionsof that building. Part of thefirst floor of the
origina structureisnow incorporated inthe present
Willard School. It may beidentified onthefirst floor as
thelunchroom spacethat isnow used by elementary
school children. At onetimeit wasasmal gymnasumin
theold Grant Park high school unit. It wasregrettable
that thefirein 1923 destroyed al of therecordsinthe
building. Very littleexiststoday to givethehistory of this
area. Asof thisdate, we cannot find that any high school
annua was published by the Grant Park High Schooal.
These old annual sthat have been found for some of the
other high schools had proved to be aval uable source of
dataconcerning thelife, time, and school offeringsof the
older high school units. When suchannuasexigt, itis
suggested that individua scontact theadministration
officeat 1800 Grand in DesMoineswith thisass stance.
It wasalong theselinesthat in February, 1975, wewere
finaly ableto get apictureof theorigina Grant Park
building through the courtesy of one of the graduates of
thehigh school who had thisamong her memorabilia. All
such contributionsaregratefully acknowledged.

North DesMoines School Didtrict

Thegrowth of thecity to the north ultimately required a
North DesMoines School District to beformed. This
wasorganizedin 1875in the Forest HomeBuilding at
13th and Forest. Ultimately therewerefivebuildings.
Forest Home School heldinthetop floorsthe beginnings
of North High School beforeit wasmoved to anew
building at 7th and College. Other school housesin-
cluded Lake Park School, later renamed Clarkson
School at 6th and Boston; Oakland School, 5th and
College, later thiswasrenamed Sabin School; Sumniit
School onthewest side of 21st between Forest and
Clark. Summit waslater renamed Given School andtorn
downinthe 1930s. The motto of the North DesMoines
High School in 1898 wasindicative of their feeling-
"Thirdinsze, secondto none.” A new high school
building for the senior high school was occupiedin 1896.
Thisred brick structurelocated at 7thand Collegeis
pictured below. In passing, it ispointed out that thefirst
principal of North High School wasMissLouise
Patterson and the last woman principal who sat at the
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principd’sdesk wasMissAmeiaMortonin 1905. (Historical I
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TheNorth DesMoinesDistrict cameinto thegreater Inde-
pendent School District of DesMoinesin 1907 along with
theothers.

Oak Park School System

Continuing on to the north was another independent school
district -the Oak Park Independent School. Thisdistrict
included, in 1864, what isnow Capital Park, Canary Lake,
and Center districts. Owing to thetrouble over thelocation of R s
anew school house, it wasdivided into the above named 15th and Center
Independent Schooal Districts. The Center District becoming
known asthe Oak Park School District. The school house
that was erected at 6th and Madison wasaK-12 unit. The
origina construction cost $10,000 and had additionswithin
the next few years. Itisinteresting to notethat Mr. Z. C.
Thornburg was el ected superintendent of Oak Park School
District in 1894. Hea so had been superintendent of the

Capital Park High School District and was|ater to serveas ; Ejj .ji -n. Il aﬂg

¥ ] [.. F - --. Tg i
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12

superintendent of the Des M oines|ndependent School
Didrict.

Theoriginal Oak Park School building ispictured below. The East Woodlawn Schoal.

third floor that housed the high school and thetower were TE W SARR, S S0

removed inthe 1930s. Asthishistory isbeing written there
havebeen structural problemswiththeoriginal building and
the present indications are that the old section of oak park
might betorn downin 1976.

Need for Merger

Indoing research for thisBicentennial history onefinds
remarksabout theinefficiency of running many small indepen-
dent school districts. Therewas debate asto the efficiency of
these separate units. However, otherspointed out that the
boardsact “ much moreintelligently, not alwaysmuch more Nopicturesavailableof:
wisaly, however, than boardswhoseinformation comesto

them from other than personal acquaintances-the patrons of L ower Agency School

(small) schoolsare ableto assert their rightsmuch more easily E‘ um Goéghscrl‘cz?' ; SO‘)JT;’V? ':()ﬁ:s M c;(ipes
thanin alarge system of schools.” awson SChool {Trame) 4rd and Frankiing
*= Sand Hill School, S.W.

: . corner Grandview Park
However, others pointed out some of the disadvantages of Walnut School, 49th and Grand

small school units. They countered “thereisagreat |oss of West Woodlawn School. Beaver and Madison
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supervisory talent. For example, asupervisor of kindergartens could give attention to 30 school s about as
well asto 15. At onetimeWest DesMoines paid $1,200 for the supervision of eight kindergartensand
North DesMoines paid $900 for the supervision of four kindergartens. Now, it seemsthat one supervisor
could attended to the 12 school sand thus saving alarge amount of money.” Theargument continued that the
samethingscould be said of the supervisorsof music, drawing, physical culture, and primary work.

They continued to arguethat the city wasnot too largefor al of theteachersto assembleinagradeor
generd teachers meeting yet they pointed out that five superintendentswere employed. They pointed out
that present arrangementsl|ed to needlessmulltiplication of high school unitsand therewasno reason for
morethan threeor four high schoolsin DesMoines, rather than the six or seven doing high school work in
early 1900's. They further pointed out that the high school sin the distant suburbswere cut off from all
contact with supervisorsand yet werewithin easy accessof theteachers meetingsinthecity.

Oakdale School Didtrict

Oakdalewas aseparate school district inthe northwest part of DesMoines. Thefirst buildingwasalog
school house at the corner of 30th and Hickman near the site of the present M onroe el ementary school. The
next school housewas one 16 x 18 and built on Beaver Avenue. Further additionsin the Oakdal e School
Digtrict included building of abuildingin the north- west part of thedistrict named Pleasant Hill.

Themain buildingsinthe Oakdale District were Elmwood School at 31st and University and Kirkwood
School at 27th and Clark. Rawson at 43rd and Franklin was another building designed for lower grades.
Theestablishment of Drake University in 1885 wasagreat stimulusto the Oakdale Digtrict and the many
homesbuilt inthisdistrict required additionsto the various school facilities.

Greenwood Park School

A separate school district and asmall one wasthe Greenwood Park School |ocated onWest Grand. A
pictureof thesmall buildingisgiven. Very littleisknown about the early history.

Jordan School wasaframe structure near the present Merrill Jr. High School.
Curridum

Beginningin 1870 and continually through the 1970’ sthereisacontinuousadding to the curriculum. New
courses are added; othersare changed, modified or dropped. Here are some highlights of some of the
additionsof coursesto thehigh school curriculum.

Variousé€ ectivesand new subjectsadded to the curriculum

1870 - Geology

Drawing (an electivefor botany)

Mora Philosophy - an el ectivefor astronomy
1871 - Moral Science

Nationa History

Page 26



Paliticd Economy

Rhetoric- aneectivefor chemistry

Bookkeeping - an electivefor botany

Ancient History - an electivefor astronomy
1873 - Elocution

Physiology

Physicd Geography

Scienceof Government General History Caesar

EnglishLiterature

Virgl

Menta Philosophy Advanced Algebra
1875 - Zoology

Higher arithmetic
1879 - 1880 Cicero

English Compodtion
1880 wasthefirst year that ateacher of businesswas made aregular member of the high school
core of teachers. At thistime Mr. Clay Slinker was engaged to teach bus ness subjects-drawing,
penmanship, physiology and civil government. Tofill in hissparemomentshetaught club swinging,
fencing, etc.
1882 - Science becamean electivefor the Latin course

Bookkeeping was asecond el ective and students wishing to take the subject wererequired

to remain after theregular school hoursin order totakeit and al soto pay extratuition.

1884 - 1885 German was an el ectivefor Virgil and Cicero

American Literatureand commercid arithmeticwerea so eectives. Physics

Etymology Greek

French

Ancient Geography

lliad
1884 - Kindergarten established in DesMoines

Inthefall of 1886 Mr. J. M. Meham, instructor in abusiness collegein DesMoines, was

engaged to cometo West Highto giveinstruction in bookkeeping.

1888 - Solid Geometry

Stenography

Commercial Geography - An elective- banking
1888 - Physical culture classesestablished (forerunner of PE.)
1889 - Drawing classes established (art)
In 1889, Mr. Clay Slinker with the cooperation of Mr. C. S. Dahlburg introduced shorthand and
typewriting. West High School wasthefirst high school inthe country to establish permanently a
coursein shorthand and typewriting. Domestic sciencewasfirst placed inthe curriculumin 1889.
Mr. and Mrs. R. H. Miller of the Toledo Public School were employed by the Board of Education
tointroducetheir new methods. Domestic science became so popular that boyswere admitted to
thisdepartment.
1890 - Manua Training classesestablished 1891 - English History
1892 - Music classesbegan
1893 - 1894 Office Practice and Bookkeeping Advanced Stenography
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1896 - Modern and Medieval History

1897 Advanced Shorthand and Advanced Typewriting 1897 - East Des M oines School s Voted
freetextbooks

1899 -West Des Moines Schoolsvoted free textbooks. Freetextsare voted by the people and
can be changed only by vote of the people.

1901 - College Preparatory Course based on L atin was offered and Greek was discontinued.

1901 - Stone part of West High was added. 1905 - A requirement was made that all students

must take English each year in high school. The Latin Department enrollment showed that over

50% of the studentstook L atin. Musi ¢ was conducted on amore systematic basisand was

counted asaregular recitation for which credit wasgiven. A coursein physical culturewasmore

completein 1905 than in previousyearssince their work had been expanded. Courses consisted

of running, work with dumbbellsand clubsand calisthenics. Thisdepartment a so gave both boys

andgirls gymnadtictraining.

1907 - Big consolidation resulted in the DesM oines | ndependent School District.

1909 - Business Organi zation based on the economics of businesswas added to the commercial
course,

1913- Clay Slinker, first director of BusinessEducationin U.S.

1913 - Office Practice and Shorthand and atwo-year coursein Business English were added.

1914 - Sdlesmanship

1914 - 1915 Normal training department was established. Classesin pedagogy weregiven.

1915 - OpenAir School (at old North High site)

1916 - Spanish was added to the curriculum, taking the place of German which wastaught inthe

schoolsup until thetime of the declaration of war with Germany.

Military training was given asacoursefor boys. The samecredit wasgivenfor thiscourseasfor

all other athletic courses. During WW!I two new subjectswere added to the commercial depart-

ment. Thesewereintens ve stenography and bookkeeping.

1917 - Telegraphy

1919 - School for Deaf (Clarkson) 1920 - School for Crippled

1920 - Origina Howe School for dow learners

1921 - Single salary schedule adopted

1922 - Detailed school budgetslaunched

1921 - 1927 - $6,630,00 bondsfor Roosevelt and Lincoln

1928 - $1,975 - teacher salary

Depression - $1,600-1,200 average salary

1925 - Junior high established (threeyear)

1925 - Sub-junior classesfor Slow learners

1930 - Developmental B classesfor dow learners 1930 - Annual testing program

1932 - High-School Day inaugurated (studentsin businessesand industries- an early form of
Career Education)

1932 - Home Economicscurriculum included coursein Family Relations

1933 - Public Forum Movement in U.S. Began by Henry Wallace, one of thefirst leadersbefore
hejoined President Roosevelt’scabinet.

1933 - Eight-year study to determine how important college requirementsfor high school courses
- 30 collegesand high schoolsinvolved.

1937 - Distributive Education established at North High.
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1940 - Office Co-op established at East High

1941 - Vocational Home Economicsintroduced into the secondary schools. 1941 - 42 - Tech High
established.

1947 - Senior high classesfor dow |learners.

1957 - September-Board authorizesaformal program for gifted studentsin two elementary
schoals.

1957 - Modern foreign languages avail able to 9th graders. 1957 - German reintroduced to curricu-
lum.

1957 - October 4 - Russian launched Sputnik 1.

1958 - Only teacherswith BA degreeshired in DesMoines Schools. Board officesmoved tofirst
floor of Tech Highfrom 629 Third Street.

1958 - Phonetic approach to reading introduced in seven e ementary schools.

1959 - Classesfor trainable (1Q under 50) established at Slinker School, 15th and Center.

1959 - Russianintroduced.

1959 - Food Servicesreorganized “ satellite” food service began.

1960 - Distributive Education extended to al high schools.

1960 - Library philosophy changed to have central librariesand certified librariansin al secondary
schools. Plansmadefor elementary librarieswith aides.

1960 - Oneunit of scienceand one unit of mathematicsrequired for graduation.

1961- Notehand introduced in senior high.

1961 - Spanish availableto qudified 7th grade students.

1961 - Foreign languagelabs opened at Roosevelt and Lincoln. 1961 - Large classinstruction
beganingrades9-11-12.

1962 - Threetrack system adopted for al students, grades 7-12, in English and Socia Studies. The

trackswerelabeled ‘ basic, general, and advanced.” 1962 - Board approved public acknowledg-

ment of studentsfinishing inthetop 3% and top 15% of each graduating class. Specia

superintendent’ sawards al o were presented to studentsfor exceptiona work in certainfields.

1962 - Spanish, acompulsory coursefor 6th grade students, introduced as part of educational
televisonviaKDPS-TV.

1962 - Four areaelementary bandsand an all-city senior high band organized since 1957.

1962 - Languagelab at East High Schoal.

1962 - a50% student increasein senior high foreign language from 1957-1962.

1963 - All elementary school s use the phonetic approach to reading.

1965 - Federal Programslaunched-ESEA, Title1, 11, 111.

1966 - Head Start pre-school program launched by Federal government.

1970 - Office Education extended to al high schools.

1970 - Dropped tracking (Advanced, general, basic) in 9-12.

1972 - Dropped one-year requirement of mathematicsand oneyear of sciencein grades9-12 for
graduation

1972 - Career Education coordinator appointed

1974 - Vocationa agribusinessprogram started at Tech High and McCombs Junior High
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1864 - High School Course of Study

The very first course which was offered in the school consisted of

Grade D-
Reading
Definitions
Arithmetic
Geography
Grammar
U. S. History
Penmanship
Declamation
Composition
Singing
Grade B-
Algebra
Geometry
Natural Philosophy
Latin
Botany

First term
Bookkeeping
Arithmetic
Penmanship
Rhetoric
Physiology

Commercial Arithmetic
Commercia  Law
Algebra

Penmanship

American Literature

First term
Physiology
Algebra
German
Rhetoric

Plane Geometry
German

Botany
American Literature

Bookkeeping
German

General History
Chemistry
Etymology

Physics
English Grammar
English Literature
Rhetoric
Commercial Law

Grade C-

Spelling
Reading
Definitions
Arithmetic
Grammar
Algebra
Penmanship
Declamation
Composition
Singing

Grade A-

Trigonometry
Astronomy

Latin

Surveying Composition
Composition Rhetoric

1888 - High School Curriculum

BUSINESS COURSE
First Year

Second term

Bookkeeping
Arithmetic

Penmanship

Rhetoric

Physiology

Second Year
Commercial Arithmetic
Commercial Law
Algebra
Penmanship
Physical Geography

ENGLISH COURSE

First Year

Second term
Physiology
Algebra
German
Rhetoric

Second Year

Plane Geometry
German

Physical Geography
American Literature

Third Year
Bookkeeping
German
General History
Chemistry
Zoology

Fourth Year
Physics
Geology
English Literature
English History

Commercial Law
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Third term
Bookkeeping
Arithmetic
Penmanship
Rhetoric
Civil Government

Commercial Arithmetic
Commercial Law
Algebra

Penmanship

Physical Geography

Third term
Botany
Algebra
German
Rhetoric

Solid Geometry
Trigonometry
German

Physical Geography
American Literature

Bookkeeping
German

Civil Government
Chemistry
Zoology

Physics

Geology

English Literature
Arithmetic Review
Commercial Law



First term
Algebra
Rhetoric
Physiology

Geometry
Botany
Latin
German

Chemistry
Etymology
Generad  History
Latin

German

Physics
Latin
German
English  Grammar
English  Literature

First term
Latin
Physiology
Rhetoric

Latin
Algebra
Botany

Latin
Geometry
General History
German

Latin

German

English  Literature
Physics

Rhetoric

Algebra Review
English Grammar

First term
Latin
Algebra
Physiology

Caesar
Geometry
Greek

Ancient History

Cicero

Anabasis

Higher Algebra
French

German

Virgil

lliad

Algebra Review
French

German

SCIENTIFIC COURSE

First Year
Second term
Algebra
Rhetoric
Physiology

Second Year
Geometry
Physical Geography
Latin
German

Third Year
Chemistry
Zoology
General History
Latin
German

Fourth Year
Physics
Latin
German
Geology
English Literature

LATIN COURSE

First Year
Second term
Latin
Physiology
Rhetoric

Second Year
Latin
Algebra
Physical Geography

Third Year
Latin
Geometry
General History
German

Fourth Year
Latin
German
English literature
Physics

Geometry Review
English History

First year
Second term

Latin
Algebra
Physiology

Second Year
Caesar
Geometry
Greek
Ancient Geography

Third Year
Cicero
Anabasis

Higher Algebra & Geometry
French
German
Fourth Year
Virgil
lliad
Geometry Review
French
German
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Third term
Algebra
Rhetoric
Botany

Geometry
Physical Geography
Latin

German

Chemistry
Zoology
Civil Government
Latin

German

Physics

Latin

German

Geology

English Literature

Third term
Latin
Botany
Rhetoric

Latin
Algebra
Physical Geography

Latin

Geometry

Trikronometry

Civi.l Government German

Latin

German

English Uterature
Physics
Arithmetic Review
Trigonometry

CLASSICAL COURSE (Preparatory for College)

Third term
Latin
Algebra
Botany

Caesar, or Cicero
Greek

Ancient History
Ancient Geography

Cicero, or Virgil
Anabasis, or lliad
Higher Geometry
French

German

Latin Reviews
Greek- Reviews
Arithmetic Review
French

German



The Studies Offered in the DesMoinesHigh School s 1922-1923
The studies offered in the Des Moines high schools are arranged in groups of related subject. The table below
gives the semester and year in which each subject is offered and the group to which it belongs.

FIRST YEAR.
1% Semester Sem. Unit 2™ Semester Sem. Unit
ENGLISH English B 5 English E2 5
SOCIAL SCIENCE Com. Civic H1 5 Vocations H2 5
Am. History H1 5 Med. History H2 5
LANGUAGE Latin LI 5 Latin L2 5
French F1 5 French F2 5
MATHEMATICS Algebra Ml 5 Algebra M2 5
NATURAL SCI. Elem. Sci SC1 5 Elem. Sci. scC2 5
COMMERCIAL Bookkeeping. BK1 5 Bookkeeping BK2 5
HOME ECONOMICS HomeEconomics HE1 5 Home Economics HE2 5
INDUSTRIAL Cabinet Making MT1 5 Cabinet Making MT2 5
(East) Drawing & Furniture Design Drawing & Furniture Design
INDUSTRIAL Cabinet Making MT1 5 Cabinet Making MT2 5
(West and North) Drawing & Furniture Design Drawing & Furniture Design
MUSIC Chorus Singing Ch A Chorus Singing Ch A
GleeClub GC 1 GleeClub GC A
Band Ba 2 Band Ba 2
Orchestra Or 2 Orchestra Or 2
El. Theory Th 3 El. Theory Th 3
AppliedMusic Mu 3 AppliedMusic Mu 3
NORMAL TRAINING
ART Art Al 5 Art A2 5
Physical Education Phys. Education PEL 5 Phys. Education PE2 1

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES

A unit means five hours per week for one year of prepared work or ten hours per week of unprepared
work.

Three unitsin any one group constitute a major, two unitsin one group, aminor.

One major must bein the English Group. One unit of American History isrequired. A second year of
Socia Science which must be H7 and H8 after June, 1926, is also required. No credit toward graduation is
granted for one semester’s work in a subject which continues for afull year.

All work should be chosen after careful consideration. The advice of parents and teacher should be taken.

Pupils who are preparing for college should decide as early as possible upon the college they will attend in
order to follow the requirements for admission.
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ENGLISH
SOCIAL SCIENCE
LANGUAGE

MATHEMATICS
NATURAL SCI.

COMMERCIAL

HOMEECONOMICS
INDUSTRIAL
(East)

INDUSTRIAL
(West and North)
MUSIC

NORMAL TRAINING
ART
Physical Education

ENGLISH
SOCIAL SCIENCE
LANGUAGE

MATHEMATICS
NATURAL SCI.

COMMERCIAL

HOMEECONOMICS
INDUSTRIAL
(East)

1% Semester
English

Mod. Histroy
Latin

French
A.Geom.
Biology
Physiology
Bookkeeping
Shorthand
Typewriting
Home Economics
Forging

Mech. Draw
Printing

Wood Turning

Drawing & Furniture Design

Chorus Singing
GleeClub

Band
Orchestra
Harmony
Applied Music

Art
Phys. Education

1% Semester
English

Am. Histroy
Latin

French

Spanish

French

Algebra
Physics
HomeHygiene
Bookkeeping
Shorthand
Typewriting
Com'’| Geography
Home Economics
Cabinet Making
Wood Truning
Pattern Making
Moulding
Forging

Auto Mechanic
Mech. Drawing
Printing

SECONDYEAR

Sam.  Unit 2" Semester

B3 5 English

H3 5 Mod. History

L3 5 Latin

F3 5 French

M3 5 M. Geom.

3 5 Biology

3 5 Agriculture

Bk3 5 Bookkeeping

Shl 5 Shorthand

Tyl 25 Typewriting

HE3 5 Home Economics

MT3 5 Auto Mechanics
Mech. Draw
Printing

MT3 5 Wood Turning

Ch 1 Chorus Singing
cC 1 GleeClub
Ba 2 Band
O 2 Orchestra
Ha 3 Harmony
Mu 3 Applied Music
A3 5 Art
PE3 5 Phys. Education
THIRD YEAR
Sam.  Unit 2" Semester
B 5 English
H5 5 Am.History
L5 5 Latin
23] 5 French
Sl 5 Spanish
F1 5 French
M5 5 Solid Geometry
S5 5 Physics
5 5
Bk5 5 Bookkeeping
Sh3 5 Shorthand
Ty3 25 Typewriting
G 5 Com'’| Arithemetic
HES 5 Home Economics
5
5 Continuation of
5 fifth semester
5
5
5
5
5
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Bk4
Sh2
Ty2
HE4
MT4

MT4

Drawing & Furniture Design

Ch
C
Ba
O
Ha
Mu

A4
PE4

H6
L6

M6

Bk6
Ty4

HEG
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INDUSTRIAL

MUSC

NORMAL TRAINING
ART
Physical Education

ENGLISH

SOCIAL SCIENCE
LANGUAGE

MATHEMATICS
NATURAL SCI.
COMMERCIAL

HOMEECONOMICS
INDUSTRIAL

(East)

INDUSTRIAL

(North & West)
MUSIC

NORMAL TRAINING
ART

Cabinet Making
Wood Turning
Mech. Drawing
Chorus Singing
GleeClub

Band

Orchestra
Harmony

Hist. & Appre.
Applied Music
Rural Education
Art

Phys. Education

1% Semester
English
Journaism
Soc. Prob (Civics)
Latin
Spanish
French
Algebra
Chemistry
Bus.Org.
Con?'l Law

Bus. Eng.
Intensive Steno.
Intensive Bkkg

continuation of
sixth semester

Chorus Singing
GleeClub

Band
Orchestra
Harmony
Counterpoint
Hist. & Appre.
Applied Music
Review Arith.
Art

REQUIREMENTSFOR GRADUATION

2majors
2minors

2 years Physical Education .4 units

Electives

5
5
5
Ch 1
€3] 1 continuefifth
Ba 2 semester election
O 2
Ha 3
Ap 1
Mu 3
5 Elem. Psychology
A5 5 Art
PES 5 Phys. Education
FOURTH YEAR
Sem.  Unit 2" Semester
E7 5 English
J
H7 5 Soc. Prob (Econ.)
L7 5 Latin
3 5 Spanish
F3 5 French
M7 5 Trigonometry
Sc7 5 Chemistry
BO 5 Accounting
a 5 Salesmanship
OfficePractice
BEL 5 Business Eng.
IS 20 Intensive Steno.
IB 20 Intensive Bkkg.
continuation of
seventh semester
Ch 1
co 1
Ba 2
O 2
Ha 3
Co 2
Ap 1
Mu 3
5 Review Grammar
A7 5 Art

6 units
4 units

5.6 units
16 units
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Required Subjects

1. English Composition

2. Englist Literature

3. US History and Civics

4. Geography & Elementary Sci.
5. Arithmetic

6. Art

7. Music

8. Health

9. Home Economics (Girls)

10. Manual Training (Boys)

11. Home Hygiene (Girls)

12. Vocations

13. Algebra or BusinessArithmetic
14. Music or Art

1925

Requirementsfor Graduation

Junior High Schools
Thefollowing isthe schedule of subjects offered in the junior high schools. (7th, 8th and 9th grades).

Choose any two from the following subjectsin the 9th grade:

15. Business Training and Penmanship
16. Latin

17. Genera Science

18. Ancient and Medieval History

9th Grade 10th Grade
English 1(E English
Englich 2(E2) English
9th Grade 10th Grade
Latin I (LI) Latin

Latin 2(L2) Latin
German 1(GI) German
German 2(G2) German

Group No. Periods& Per Week

Sym 7B A 8B

EC 5 5 5

Lit. 25 25 25

H 5 5 5

G 5 5

M 5

A 25 25

Mu 25

PE 5 5 5

HE 5 5 5

MT 5 5 5

HH

Voc

M or BA

Mu or A

B Tr

L1&2

Scl&2

H1&2

ENGLISH

11th Grade

3(E3) English 5 (E5)

4 (E4) English 6 (E6)

LANGUAGE

11th Grade

3(L3) Latin 5(L5)

4(L4) Latin 6 (L6)

3(G3) German  5(Gb)

4(G4) German 6 (G6)
Spanish I (S1)
Spanish 2(S2)
French I (FI)
French 2(F2)
Swedish I (Swl)
Swedish 2 (Sw2)
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8A

5

9B 9A
5
5
25 25
5
5
5
5 5
25 25
5 5
5 5
5 5
5 5
12th Grade
English 7 (E7)
English 8 (ES8)
Review Grammar
Reading

Bus. Eng. (BEY7)
Bus. Eng. (BES)

12th Grade
Latin
Latin

7(L7)
8(L8)

Spanish 3 (V)
Spanish 4 ($4)
French 3 (F3)
French 4 (F4)
Swedish 3 (Sw3)
Swedish 4 (Sw4)



Sth Grade
Algebra
2(M2)

I (MI)
PlaneGeom. (M)

9th Grade
Anc. History (H1)
Anc. History (H2)

9th Grade
Gen. Science(Scl)
Gen. Science(Sc2)

9th Grade
Bookkeeping (Bk1)
Bookkeeping (Bk2)
Penmanship (pnl)
Penmanship (pn2)

9th Grade
MT1
MT2

9th Grade
Gymnasium 1
Gymnasium 2
Chorus 1
Chorus 2
Biblel
Bible2
Journalism 1
Journalism 2
Orchestra

MATHEMATICS

10th Grade 11th Grade

Plane Geom. (M3) Algebra 3(M,5)

SolidGeom. (M6) Trigonometry (M8)
SOCIAL SCIENCE

10th Grade 11th Grade

Med. History (H3)
Med. History (H4)
Gen. Higtory (GH1)
Gen.Higtory (GH2)

Economics(H5)
Eng. History (H6)
Commerica History

NATURAL SCIENCE

10th Grade

11th Grade

12th Grade
Algebra 4 (M7)Algebra

12th Grade

U.S. History (H7)
U.S.History (H8)
Civics

12th Grade

Botany (Sc3) Physics(Sch) Chemistry (Sc7)
Agriculture (Sc4) Physics(Sc6) Chemistry (Sc8)
Zoology (Sc3)
Physiology (Sc4)
COMMERCIAL SUBJECTS
10th Grade 11th Grade 12th Grade
Bookkeeping (Bk3) Shorthand (Sh3) Salesmanship
Bookkeeping (Bk4) Shorthand (Sh4) Bus. Organization
Shorthand (Sh1) Typewriting (Ty3) OfficePractice
Shorthand (Sh2) Typewriting (Ty4) Commerica Law
Typewriting (Ty1) Commerica Geography
Typewriting (Ty2) Commerica Arithmetic
MANUAL TRAINING SUBJECTS
10th Grade 11th Grade 12th Grade
MT3 MT5S
MT4 MT6
AL(*) A3(*) A5(*)
A2(*) A4() AB(*)
MISCELLANEOUSSUBJECTS
10th Grade 11th Grade 12th Grade
Orchestra 3 Orchestra 5 Orchestra 7
Orchestra 4 Orchestra 6Orchestra 8
Chorus 3 GleeClub 3 Gleeclib 5
Chorus 4 GleeClub 4 GleeClub 6
Glee Club | Chorus 5 Chorus 7
GleeClub2 Chorus 6 Chorus 8
Bible3 Bible5 Bible7
Bible4 Bible6 Bible8
Journaism3 Journalism5 Journalism7
Journaism4 Journalism 6 Journalism8

Swimming
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1925
SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL SUBJECTS BY GROUPS
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The Growth of DesMoines

Aswe canlook at the growth of the school district of DesMoinesand seehow it hasevolvedintoits
present single status from the consolidation of more than twenty separate districts, we must |ook at how
thecity of DesMoineshasgrown. I nthe accompanying map you can seetherel ative small spacethat
was encompassed inthecity of Ft. DesMoinesin 1853. In 1857, the boundaries are delineated and at
that timeit becamethecity of DesMoines.

Thecity wasfirstincorporated January 18, 1853, asthecity of Ft. DesMoines. On March 7,1857,
the city of DesMoineswas organized and the city limitsextended, giving the city an areaof 8 square
miles. Thischange can be seen onthemap. The populationin 1857 was approximately 4,000.

AsDesMoines continued to grow, anumber of incorporated townsand cities began to surround the
coreareaof downtown DesMoines. Theseincluded University Place, Greenwood Park, Sevastapol,
Gilbert, Capitol Park, Grant Park, Easton Place, and North DesMoines. It isinteresting that neither
Highland Park nor Oak Park wereincorporated. All of theseincorporated areasvoted in 1889to
mergeintothecity of DesMoines. Thiswasalarge consolidation moveand thecity limitsremained
fixedfor the next 60 years.

Earlier inthebooklet the consolidation process of the school district wasset out in detail. The
accompanying mapwill help givesomeideaof theareasinvolved.

Thecity annexed, on June 2, 1955, the Des Moines Municipal Airport which was outsde of thecity
limitsin Bloomfield Township. Thisaction wastaken asadefensive measure sincethere had been some
discussion on the part of Bloomfield Township’sresidentsto incorporate as‘ Rose City’ and of course
toincludetheairport. The Bloomfield Township areawasincorporated into thecity later in 1955. In
1976 thecity incorporates about 64 square milesand the school district haswithinitslimitsapproxi-
mately 84 squaremiles.

Asasidelight onschool district mergerswithin Polk County itis pointed out that therewere 52
separate school districtsin 1952. The steady decline of themany rura school districtsacrossthe county
assisted inthe merger of many of thesedistricts. In 1962 therewasatotal of 27 separate school dis-
trictsand thiswasreduced to 15 by action of the Polk County school board.

Thereorganization of anumber of school districtsto form the Southeast Polk district aswell asthose

toformtheNorth Polk district aswell as certain other mergerssuch asthe Clive school district merging
withthe West DesMoinesschool district resulted in further reduction.

Page 38



A A A ¢

How Des Moines Has Grown

]

T s [P gy ety

Page 39



ADAMSSCHOOL GradesK-5
East 29th and Douglas
Site-4.1 acres

Thefirst Adams School waslocated at East 27th and
Douglas. Thisthree room wooden building wasmoved to the
present site and subsequent constructionislisted above. This
school was named for John Quincy Adams.

A complete history of Adams School, teachers, principals,
P.T.A. officersand minutesof PT.A. meetings has been
compiled and isin abound book at Adams School. Thisbook
containspicturesof the buildings, teachers, pupilsand PTA.
officers. It a so contains many newspaper clippingsincluding an
obituary of Mr. Jordan, theprincipal who diedin 1937.

PT.A. minutesrecord that at the September meetingin
1937, “about 40 were present and very sad, asMr. Jordan, our
principal for twenty yearswasvery ill inthe hospital . Flowers
werevoted to be sent him.” Then at the October meeting the
following notation was made; “ October 13 about 49 members
met in theevening for our regular meeting. Memberswere
very sad as Mr. Jordan had passed away.”

The obituary of Mr. Jordan statesthat at onetime he had
charge of thefollowing ten schools: Perkins, Adams, Barton,
Bly, Jefferson, Monroe, Riley, Windsor, Douglasand Meredith.
Morerecently hewas principal of agroup of fiveschools
includingAdams.

When thefirst frame building wasopened in 1917 there
weretwo teachers, MissMarguerite Hanke and Miss
Genevieve Schultz. Mr. J. 0. Mitchell was principal

Inthefirst brick building builtin 1924 therewerefour
rooms, in addition to aframebuilding. The enrollment was 183.
Mr. W. L. Jordan was principal. From then through two
additionsto the original four rooms. Adamshas continued to
grow and expand. Through these many yearsmore and more
new homes have been built each producing boysand girlsto be
educated. As mentioned above, more detailed history of Adams
will befound inthe bound book kept inthe school office.

In 1971 an addition of two roomswas added to the west
wing of thebuilding. Thiscost was$57,000. New housing
developments have enabled Adamsto keep asubstantial
enrollment in contrast to the declining popul ation in many
schoals.
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Datesof construction-
-1917 framebuilding (3 rooms)
1924 first wing of present building
1951 first addition
1961 second addition
1971 addition of 2 classrooms

Principalsof Adams School -
1917-1919J. 0. Mitchdll
1919-1937 W. Lee Jordan
1937-1939 EdnalL. E. Petersen
1939-1944 Ruth Pritchard
1944-1945 AlmedaNe son
1945-1964 Edith Patterson
1964- Mildred Shay



Brooks

Datesof constructional
--1909 One half
1914 First addition
1925 Second addition
1975—New gymnasium

Principal sof Brooks School-
1910 - 1913 Mr. Warren
1913-1918J. 0. Mitchell
1918 - 1937 Minnie Wal ker
1937 - 1939 James B.
1939 - 1957 Clarence 1. Pease
1957 - 1964 Frances Meneough
1964 - 1968 Harry Elder
1968 - 1974 Donad Williams
1974-  Marly Davis

BROOKS SCHOOL GradesK-6
East 21st & DesMoines St.
Site-3.6 acres

Brooks School wasnamed for Dr. ThomasK. Brooks.
Dr. Brookswasthefirst physician and postmaster in Des
Moines. Helived near BrooksL ake, and it was hisearnest
desirethat the county seat of Polk County would be
located near the present site of Brooks School.

The 1970’ spresented achallengeto Brooks School to
changetheforemat of the educationa programin order to
more nearly meet the academic needs of eachindividua
student.

In 1971, anindividualized approachtolearningwas
begunin the upper grades. Children of grades4-5-6 were
mixed and thusan ungraded program was begun. With this
concept, achild could progressasfast asheisableinthe
areaseasiest for him and till takethetime heneedsin
areashefindsmoredifficult. Upper unit teachers special-
izedin areas of their teaching strengths and devel oped a
totally departmentalized program. The devel opment of
behavioral objectivesand the concept of teaching to them
became areality and abasic part of the program.

In 1972, Brooks became officially oneof thethirteen
| GE schoolsinthedistrict and our goasfor anindividual-
ized approach for teaching children were enhanced. The
school wasdivided into four unitsand ateam leader for
each unit was appointed. Children were assigned to units
rather than grades and thetotal school became dedicated
to meeting the needs of each child.

Our program has since then progressed and now
includesasapart of every subject, Career Education.
During the 1974-75 year wewere able not only to combine
career education with all subject areasbut in addition to
provideactua learning experiencesthat afforded the
children away *to actually see how the skillsthey were
learning in school would beanecessity for operatinginthe
world of work.

The Brooksprogram isconcerned with not only indi-
vidualization but al so with the humanizing influence.
Activitieswhich promote positive human rel ationshipshave
becomean integral part of the over all plan.

Titlel Reading and Math program beganin September
1973.1n 1975, two Learning Disability self contained
classroomswere added aswell asone L earning Disability
resourceroom. On March 4, 1975 the Board of Education
awarded abid to Jorge Construction Company for $74,000
for aphysical education facility addition at Brooks Elemen-
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tary School. Thetotal of the other contractsfor mechanical
and electrical brought thetotal construction cost to $105,4009.
Thisaddition made possibleaful| gymnasiumfacility for
Brooks School and eliminated the need for the use of the small
gymnasiumthat had originally been apart of the old building.

CASADY SCHOOL GradesK-6
16th Street and Jefferson
Site-4.2 acres

Thisbuilding honorsthe memory of Phineas M. Casady
who was appointed postmaster in 1847 by President Polk. At
thistime, the name of the post office was changed from -
"Raccoon Forks’ to “ Fort DesMoines.” Therewere 31
houses, 23 familiesand 107 peoplein residenceinthetown.

Mr. Casady wasalawyer, state senator in the Second
General Assembly, school fund commissioner for lowaand a
banker. Helived to be 92 years old and was one of thegrand
men of lowa.

The south end of the school building wasbuiltin 1905.
Therewerethree more classroomsin theorigina Casady
School than inthe present south section. The southwest corner
of the building wastorn down becauseit was sinking and thus
tilting therest of the structure. The sinking was attributed to
either quick sand or aformer coal mineinthevicinity. Anold
report statesthat there were ten teachers when Casady
opened in 1905. The neighborhood wasan ‘ elite’ areaat that
time.

In February, 1948, Casady suffered an extensivefireinthe
south wing. At thetime workmen wereremodeling thetoil ets.
Thefirewasfirst noticed when it became dark enough for the
neighborsto seethereflections of theflames. The south part
had to be completely rebuilt.

The newest section to the north was opened for classesin
January, 1953. Thevery latest ideasin construction were
incorporated into thisaddition. Television classeswereaddedin
the 1960’s. In 1965 a hot lunch program was begun.

Casady inthemid-1970’shad an underdepartmentalized
program, Thisistheonly school inthe system participatingin
the U.S. Office of Education’s Right to Read Program that
beganin 1972-73. Thehighlight of that year wasthevisit by
Mrs. PatriciaNixon, wife of the President. Her visit was
preceded by the usual secret serviceinspection of the building
and the posting of guardsat all entrancesand on the roof
duringtheofficial visit of thefirst lady to thiselementary
school. Mrs. Nixon had taken apersonal interest inthe Right to
Read program that isrun nationally.
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Datesof constructional
1905 One-third
1926 One-ninth
1953 Five-ninths

Principalsof Casady School-

1905 - 1914 ClaraFunston
1914 - 1945 Gertrude Murphy
1945 - 1952 AlmedaNelson
1952 - 1959 Kathryn Christian
1959 - 1961 Sarah Page
1961 - 1964 Ronald Sterrett
1964 - 1967 Danidl Priest
1967 - 1971 James Pierson
1971 - 1972 Dale Jacobus
1972 - 1973 JamesMitchell
1973- Robert Hyde



Cattall

Datesof construction-
1980 Two-ninths
1910 Two-ninths
1915 Two-ninths
1925 Three-Ninths

Principasof Cattell School-
1894 - 1898 Mae Koker
1898- 1906 Minnie Guthrie
1906 - 1908 Belle Swope
1908 - 1924 LauraR. Moiiltoii
1924- 1933 Mabel A. Otis
1933- 1945 AnnaStohigren
1946 - 1963 Ednal. E. Petersen
1963 - 1967 Jack Gibbons
1967 - 1972 James Reese
1972 - 1975 Don Shaw

CATTELL SCHOOL GradesK-6
East 12th and Hull
Site- 2.1 acres

Cattell School bearsthe name of Jonathan Wright Cattell
who wasall outstanding pioneer of early DesMoinesdays.
Prior to 1909, Cattell School wasknown as Grand View
Grade School.

Mr. Cattell wasbornin Pennsylvaniaand lived there until
about twenty years of age. Hemarried and moved to the
Territory of lowaabout 1845, settlingin Cedar County. He
wasastate senator from that county and quite an active
legidator.

In 1858 hewaselected auditor of lowa. Inregardto his
election, the State Register says: “ It wasafortunate thing for
lowathat aman of hisRoman simplicity, Spartan courage and
inflexible honesty that arose above every temptation wasin
that position at that particular time.” Heintroduced improve-
mentsinto the manner of conducting monetary transactions of
the state aswell asin the system of bookkeeping. During his
incumbency, which covered theentirecivil war era, the
expenditureswere very heavy and thework greater than ever
before. Twice he wasre-elected to the office.

Whileamember of the General Assembly, Jonathan Cattell
and other State House officialsand citizens sponsored a
school at East Ninth and Des M oines Streets. It wasa
community later served by Bryant School. Though built and
supported by private contributions, therewasnointention of
making it aprivate school. When two colored children were
admitted, thewealthiest contributor withdrew hischildrenas
well ashiscontributions. Mr. Cattell and othersdoubled their
payments and the school went on. Hewas one of thefirst
menin DesMoinesto support minority groupsby insisting on
equa educational opportunity for al.

After hisretirement, Mr. Cattell remained aresident of the
city and for ashort timewasout of political life. In. 1866 he
was nominated by the Republicans of Polk County astheir
representative in the State Senate. He served two terms and
againretired from public office. However in 1885 hewas
appointed by Governor Sherman asauditor of the state, tofill
out aterm. Physically Mr. Cattell resembled Abraham Lin-
coln.

In 1967, the School District began purchasing, for future
needs, the properties north of the present school grounds--
north to Tiffin between East 12th and East 13th. All but one
property hasbeen purchased.

To support and enrich astrong basic skillsprogram, the
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following areasare noted:

1. A phonetic approach to reading continuesto beusedin the primary grades.

2. A career education program, integrated with the curriculum areas, wasimplemented.

3. Therehasbeen emphasison the use of supplementary materialsand instructional mediamaterialsand
equipment. Theauditorium isbeing converted to amediacenter.

4. There hasbeen assistance from resource and support personnel. The most recent programs have been

intheareasof reading and learning disabilities.

5. Cooperative planning and teaching to meet the needs of individuals.

To enhancethe” Community School” concept, thefollowing areashave been utilized:

School-Community Council

Working relationship with Grandview College.

aghhwpdpE

Involvement of community inthe Career Education Program.

Classesfor children and adultsthrough the district’s Community Education Department.
Recreation program sponsored by the City Parks and Recreation Department.

Inthemid-1970's Cattell had adepartmentalized primary unit with agrade 4-6 modified six-unit program

for the older students.

COWLESSCHOOL GradesK-6
64th and College
Site-9.3 acres

Thisbuilding was named in honor of Florence Call Cowles,
wifeof Gardner Cowles, Sr., and mother of Gardner Cowles,
Jr. owner of the DesMoines Register & Tribune, LOOK
magazine, and KRNT radio and television stations.

The primary wing of kindergarten, Six primary roomsand
an all-purpose room was opened September, 1958 with 200
pupils. Thewing of ten class- rooms, art room, library, and
gymnasium was opened in September, 1961. Thetotal cost
for both wingswas $622,483.

Gradeskindergarten through thirdfilled the building from
1958 until 1961 when gradesfour through six wereincluded.
In 1963 some 250 pupilsfrom the DebraHeightsareawere
bussed to Cowles and remained there until June, 1965 when
Samuel son was opened.

Cowles School wasoneof theorigina suburban buildings
to beareceiving school under the Equal Education Opportu-
nity volunteer transfer program. Black studentsfromthe
inner-city schoolsof Moulton and Nash had el ected to attend
Cowlesinstead of their [ocal attendance unit. Inthemid-
1970’ sthisbuilding aso hastwo learning disabilitiessatellite
groupsaswell asaspecial assistancefor thevisually im-
paired students.

In addition to theregular educational program thedirector
of library serviceshashisofficeinthisbuilding alongwith
two roomsused by the catal oging division of the school
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Cowles

Principasof Cowles School-
1958 - 1960 AlmedaNelson
1960 - 1963 Jeaii McClintic
1963 - 1972 Lorene Lightfoot
1972 - 1975 Tom Stokes
1975-  Lester Rees



system. Yet another roomisused by the music education divisionto storeand circulatethemusicto al
elementary and secondary schools. Cowlesa so housesthe elementary consultants and the student teaching
supervisor fromthe University of Northern lowa. Beginning in Sept. 1975, Cowlesand Elmwood will be
paired and sharethe same principal.

Progress of Cowles School duringthe 1970's.

Community and parental involvement have been emphasized in recent years. An average of 50 parents
volunteer their servicesweekly to helpindividual students, do clerical work, operatethe*open” library, and be
of assistance where needed. Over 100 parentsvolunteer to assist during the annual CowlesTrack Mest; an
extravaganzathat features both track and field events.

Community education classes are offered for both parents and students. From 6 to 8 courses are offered
each session to meet the requested desires of the community.

Career Education wasimplemented as part of the curriculumin 1973. Studentsin grades K-6 have been
involved invarious career related projectsand haveinterviewed most parentsregarding their chosen profes-
son.

Music educationisanintegral part of theregular school curriculum with over 70% of all 4-6 grade students
involved with private or group lessons.

Cowleswasapilot school for the Waupum project. This project screens, evaluates and placesall Kinder-
garten students so the teacher can best meet theindividual needs, devel oping the weaker areas and enhancing
the strong.

School spirit was enlivened through the selection of school colors, song and mascot. An active student
council pursues student interestsand desires. ThisK-6 organizationisin the process of compl eting astudent
center.

o DOUGLASSCHOOL GradesK-5
East 38th and Douglas
Site-5.7Acres

Douglas school was named because of itslocation on
DouglasAvenue. Thefirst PT.A. wasorganized in 1912,
Douglaswasasmall primary unit for many years. Gradually

-~ theempty farmland was subdivided by home devel opers.
Dougias Booming housing devel opmentsmadeit necessary tobuilda
15 roomadditionin 1964 at acost of $506,958.00. Beforethe
addition was completed many children were bussed to

Datesof constrtion --

1910 Threerooms Longfellow School for severa years.
1920 Threerooms o .
1965Sixtean room When the addition was completed and ready for usein
xteenrooms August 1965, the enrollment had grown so much therewere
. 160 Kindergarten children- 40 childrenin each sessonwhich
Principasof Douglas School

necessitated hiring 2 full timeteacher associates, andit was

1911 - 1915 Ann Howland necessary to have 5 - 1st grade classrooms of 34 each.

1915-1916 Mr. Evralls In 1967, Hoyt Elementary school wasbuilt asaPrimary
1916 - 1919 AliceWhite School. Thishel ped alleviate some of thelarge sized classesfor
1919 - 1937 W. Lee Jordon several years.

1937 - 1939 Edna Petersen In 1972 Hoyt was changed to aMiddle school so thesixth
1939 - 1944 Ruth Pritchard gradersfrom Douglas could attend there, that made Douglasa
1944 - 1946 Almeda Nelson K - 5school.

1946 - 1954 Edith Patterson
1954 - 1958 LorraineKimball Reed
1958 - 1964 JamesE. Wise
Page45



DUNLAPSCHOOL GradesK-6
S.E. 11th Street and Railroad Ave.
Site-2.5 acres

Dunlap School was constructed in 1952 as areplacement for
theold Curtis School located at S.E. 6th and Raccoon, and for
Benton School, aframebuilding at S.E. 12th and Shaw.
Benton wasrazed in 1963 and the site has been sold. Curtis
was put on theinactivelist sinceit wasarelic of the old East
DesMoines School District having been builtin 1874. The
Curtis School and sitewere soldin 1965.

The Dunlap School wasnamed in honor of FloraB. Dunlap
who wasaveteran socia worker in the southeast section of
DesMoines. Somehigh- lightsof MissDunlap’slifearegiven
below:

FloraDunlap wasborn February 27, 1872, inalog cabin on
the banks of Deer Creek near Circleville, Ohio, of early
American pioneer ancestry. She attended public schoolsin
Ohio and wasgraduated from Cincinnati Wes eyan College.

Dl ap

Past principa sof Dunlapinclude:
1952 - 1960 Florence Weisbrod
1960 - 1962 Pherrin Dowell
1962 - 1968 Patience Guthrie
1968 - 1971 Dale Jacobus
1971- Robert Langbehn

MissDunlap’sforty-year career in Des Moinesbegan in 1904 when she became director of Roadside
Settlement House, one of thefirst inthe country, located at Eighth and Mulberry Streets. Astheflood-ridden
south- east section of DesMoines cameto bethe city’sbiggest social and sanitation problem, the need for a
social settlement housein the areabecame apparent, so Miss Dunlap took theinitiativein planning anew
Roadsidebuilding at S. E. Seventh and Scott Streets.

For twenty years FloraDunlap served asdirector of Roadside. During World War | she served two years
with theWar Camp Community service—theU.S.O. of that time. Retiring asdirector of Roadsidein 1924,
she continued to serve on the board until leaving DesMoinesin 1943.

But FloraDunlap’sinterestswere much broader than her immediatejob at the settlement house. Her
influencewasgreat and beneficial to the community in thefields of education, women'’srights, palitics, and
public health. Her serviceto the community reflectsthiswideinfluence.

In 1909 she became a charter member of the board of the Public Health Nursing Association andin 1912
shewasthefirst woman to be el ected to the school board in DesMoines. During theyearsfrom 1913to0 1915
MissDunlap was president of the lowa Equal SuffrageAssociation and was|egidlative chairman of thelowa
Federation of Women’s Clubs. From 1919 to 1921 she served asthefirst president of the lowa L eague of
Women Voters. For ten years, from 1933 to 1943, shewasbusily engaged serving her community as chairman
of thewomen’sdivision of theWPA in lowa, and she a so served asamember of the Polk County Social
Welfare Board, again being thefirst woman to hold such aposition. She a so wasamember of the Community
Chest board of directorsfrom 1932 to 1938. In 1922 and again in 1940 she was president of the Polk County
Women’'s Democratic Club, and in 1936 she served asamember of astate committeeto study social welfare
legidation for lowa, and then worked on acommittee of fiveto draft social welfarebillsfor the state.

In 1943 Miss Dunlap returned to her girlhood homein Circleville, Ohio. OnAugust 26, 1952, death inter-
rupted her serviceto the people sheloved.

The FloraDunlap Elementary School, at S.E. Eleventh Street and Railroad Avenue, was compl eted before
her death.

Inthemid-1970's Dunlap elementary school hasthe undepartmentalized program. With the closing of Scott
elementary school at E. 25th and Maury, those youngsters are now brought by school busto Dunlap whichis
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Edmunds

Dateof constrution-1974

Principa sof Edmunds School include:
-1973-  Don Brubaker

their new attendance center. Inthe mid-1970's Dunlap hasthe
following compensatory programsfor students: Titlel Read-
ing, K-6; Titlel Math, K-4; Follow Through, K-3aswell as
Head Start classes. There are also classesfor the educable
mentally retarded. Dunlap isaschool inthe community action
program that involvesagreat deal of participation by parents
in after-school activities. One of theinnovative programsthat
hasreceived nation-wide recognition hasbeen thefamily
learning center. It isan active participant in the community
cultural recreational activitiesprogram.

EDMUNDSSCHOOL GradesK-6
1601 Crocker Street
Site-3 acres

For the 1973-1974 school year, Edmunds School was
housed in two former elementary school sthat werefore-
runners of Edmunds. Thesewere Bird School at Harding
Road and Woodland and Grant School at 23rd and Cottage
Grove. Bird School wasdemolishedin 1975.

Grant School was one of the oldest school unitsinthe
district having been built originaly in 1885 with additionsin
1895 and 1910. Grant was sold in 1974. Each of these had
been K-8 unitsin the old West Des Moines school district
that existed until 1907 when the general merger of school
districtstook place.

Thus, thesetwo former school s possessed aproud
heritagethat formed the background for astriking new
educational unit that was soon to be built-Edmunds, which
was based upon an open-space philosophy of education.
Alongwith thiseducational ideawasthe philosophy that the
school board used for all of the schoolsinthe 1970'sand
that was, input from the school community asto thetype of
school facility that theindividuaswholivedinthat neigh-
borhood wished to have built. In the case of Edmundsand
King, aunique planning processcalled the Educational
Charrettewas utilized. It wasthefirst onein the State of
lowaand inthe midwest. Theideawas espoused by the
U.S. Office of Education and endorsed by the State
Department of Public Instruction.

The history of Edmunds School goesback totwo el-
ementary schools- Bird School at Harding Road and of
these two buildingsthat were to become Edmunds Schoal.

In 1968, planswere beginning to takeform whichwould
eventualy resultinanew, singleeducationa facility to
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replace Bird and Grant. The Board of Education and other concerned citizensweretaking anew look at
processes used for new school devel opment.

In 1971, aCharrettewas held to begin thefinal stagesof planning for the singlefacility. Charrettewas
defined asavehicleincluding parents, senior citizens, students, teachers, administrators, businessmen, agency
representatives, religiousleaders, university personnel and special consultants.

Dr. CharlesLink and Dr. Donald Brubaker served as coordinators of the Charrette processand were
responsiblefor the devel opmental team selected to interpret the educational findings of the Charrette partici-
pantsfrom the Bird/Grant community.

From the Charrette came ahumanistic, multi-cultured direction to program devel opment and facility plan-
ning. The process produced an educational facility whichwasto:

(2) provideacurriculum of relevancy. (2) providefor development of self-worth and pridethroughthe
educational programs. (3) servetherecreational and health needsof thetotal community. (4) draw students
from other communitiesin an effort to create amulti-cultured educational setting. The school wasto bean
open-spaced building with an individualized approach to learning. Thelearning design wasto serveadultsas
well aschildren.

The citizens of the Des Moines | ndependent Community School voted bondsfor the construction of the new
building and in 1972 began to build thisfine new structure. Edmunds School opened itsdoorsin September of
1974.

ELMWOOD SCHOOL GradesK-6 Elmwood
3lstand University
Site-1.7 acres

Thenorth part of ElImwood wasbuiltin 1886 whenit wasa
part of the Oakdal e School District. About 1900 the Oakdale
District merged with the West Des M oines Schools, and the
high school students housed in EIm, wood were sent to the
West High building at 15th and Center. ElImwood then became
an elementary school with kindergarten through theeighth

grade. _ Datesof construction:
In 1901 there were six teachers employed asthe Elmwood -1886 One-fourth

faculty. In 1910 someold recordsindicate that therewere 179 1900 One-fourth

pupilsand eight teachers. With the devel opment of University 1923 One-half

Place and the western part of DesMoinesiii general, the
school populationincreased. Citizensthen, asnow, werefaced
with the problem of school housing. Inthe Spring, 1921 issue
of Elmwood Scrapswe notethat the I ndependent School
District of DesMoineshad definite plansfor morerooms: ,
“The process of the house movingisinteresting to all ages. 1902 - 1913 Elizabeth Robb

The pupilsat EImwood are having the opportunity to seethis 1913- 1933E. GertrudeBurt
done sincethe houses at the south of the school on Brattleboro 1933- 1952 Blanche V. Toohey

Principasof Elmwood School-
1886 - 1900 Mr. Carter
1900- 1902 J. W. Hayman

Avenue are being moved to make room for the new building.” 1952 - 1953 Pearl L eander

The dedication exercisesfor anew two-story brick building 1953 - 1959 Robert Denny
south of the old EImwood structurewere held on Tuesday, 1959 (6 months) Kenneth Rankin
January 15, 1924. Both buildings were separate and complete. 1959 - 1963 Carl Fehrle
However, awooden shed was placed on the cast sidetojoin 1963 - 1967 Irene Perkins
the two school houses. The shed or covered corridor wasan 1967 - 1972 Bernard Miller

1972-  Lester Rees
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icy tunnel during thewinter and pupilshad to put on winter coats and hats before passing from theold
building to the new one. As might be anticipated, thisrunway was noisy. It wasno small inconvenienceto
walk from the second floor of the old building down to the shed and up to the second floor of the new one.
In 1937 the present brick corridorswere constructed to make the present day Elmwood building that
beginson University and extendsto Brattleboro.

Inthe 1920's Des M oines embarked upon an ambitious program of building separate junior high school
building. In 1928 the seventh and eighth grade classes at Elmwood were sent to Callanan and the present
elementary school of kindergarten through sixth grade emerged.

Thefirst record of EImwood participating in the organization which later becameknown asthe PT.A.
was notesfound many yearslater by Hazel Hillis, daughter-in-law of Mrs. Isaac Hillis, founder and first
president of lowa Congress of Mothers. One note stated:

“In 1900 was organi zed the Des Moines City Union of Mother Clubswhich | served asPresident for
fiveyears. The seventeen clubs of the unionincluded two W.C.T.U. units, onekindergarten ,association,
two churchesand twelve public school groups.”

In another note we know that Elmwood was one of the memberssinceit read:

“City Union met Saturday, May 19, 1900 -- Oakland, Bird, EImwood, Kirkwood, Cooper, Oak Park,
Webster, Longfellow. Cary, Capitol Park, Bremer, Forest Home and Washington.”

Many achievementswere made by the City Union and the State Congress so it must be assumed that
Elmwood parents had avery definitepartinall of the progress. For example, afreeward was established
at thenew Methodist Hospital, which was aforerunner of the State University of lowaHospital.

During thisperiod the mothersweretrying toinfluencelegid ation for compul sory education, Child |abor
lawsand conditions surrounding women and childrenin city, county and stateinstitutionswerebeing
investigated.

Former Vice-president Henry A. Wallace attended ElImwood in the early 1900's. In 1955 hewrotethe
following letter to the ElImwood PT.A.

September 28, 1955
Dear Mrs. Kernahan:

“Replying to your letter of September 21 about my connection with ElImwood Schooal, | recall that | first
attended the school inthefall of 1898 or the spring of 1899 when we moved to 38th and University.

“1 entered thefifth grade. Graduated from the 8th grade in June, 1902. The boy of my classwhom |
most vividly remember was Cole McMartinwhoisstill living but very sick. Hisgrandfather, old judge
Cole, would sometimes cometo the school to give ustalks. Perhapsthe best student in our classwas
VestaPeak who | believeisan aunt of George Peak who isactivein DesMoinesbusinesscircles.
“About 1900 or 1901 we moved from 38th and University to 38th and Cottage Grove. Cottage Grovewas
adirt road and in the spring was an d most impassable quagmirewith signsinit on figuresupside down
saying “Hehasn’t found bottom yet.”

“All thetimel wasat EImwood | milked acow every night and morning and after 1900 pumped all the
water in astoragetank intheattic, that wasrequired by afamily of eight. Of course | walked back and
forthto school twiceaday. It wasin 1901 that | first saw an auto- mobile along aroad out our way.
Occasionally my mother would have aparty for the teachersat our house at 38th and Cottage Grove
(wherethe Grace Methodi st church now stands.)

“For atimethe U.P. church whichisthe progenitor of the present Westminster held meetingsin
Elmwood. It must have been about 1900 or 1901 just beforethe church at 35th and Cottage Grovewas
erected. | remember well attending religious servicesin the Elmwood School on Sundays.

Sincerdly,

Henry A. Wallace”
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During the 1920-1921 school year EImwood maintained aMilk Station. Four pupilsfrom each classtook
turnspresiding during the morning recess. Over two hundred under-weight pupil s received nourishment
which helped build their health. By spring the percentage of underweight childrenin EImwood had dropped
from 40% to 25%.

War stampswere sold during W. W. Il andin theyearsthat followed. During the 1950's Elmwood pupils
used theradio programs broadcast by KDPS-FM. In the 1960’ s some of the classes began to usetelevi-
sion programsfrom KDPS-TV. A satellitelunch program wasinaugurated in thefall of 1964.

Elmwoodin1975- 76
Elmwood'senrollment has shown acontinuous decline during the period of 1970-75. The school enrollment
now standsat 282. Among the reasonsfor thisdecline arethefollowing:

1. Thepurchaseof property by Drake University intheareawhichin turn haseither beenturnedinto
parking lotsor rented to studentsmore than familieswith children.

2. Thecontinual decline of the areaasthe central core of the city spreads north and west.

3. Being anolder neighborhood, there are more older peopleliving inthe areawho at onetime sent
childrento Elmwood.

4. Anunusualy large number of apartmentsin the areawhich are mostly rented to singlesor newly-
married couples.

Programs.

1. Titlel Reading
Designated asaTitlel school for the 1974-75 year, ElImwood had
the services of areading resource teacher and associate. Boysand girlsin grades K4 profited much
fromthisadditiona help.

2. Headstart
A Headstart classwas begun in September of 1974. Therewere 27 youngsters, mostly fromthe
adjacent areaswho had agreat year and agood send-off to kindergarten.

3. SpecificLearning Disabilities
Inthefall of 1972 ahalf-timeteacher for learning disabilitieswas added to the staff. Teachersidenti-
fied boysand girlsin K-6 who would need additional help for periodsup to 45 minuteswith aspecia
teacher.

4. Satellite Resource Room
In January of 1975 aspecificlearning disabilitiesroom from Madison School was moved to Elmwood.
Theseboysand girlsin grades K -3 spent most of their day intheir ownroom. Astheir ability and
control permitted they are sent out to variousroomsfor periods of timeranging up to half aday.

5. School Community Council
A School Community Council was begun in September of 1972. It meetsonce amonth and discusses
problemsof concernto parentsand faculty in regard to school and/or community problems.

6. 1975-76
Because of afurther dropin enrollment, ElImwood moved to aself- contained organizational pattern
for the 1975-76 school year. A special music planning time teacher was added and boysand girlsin
grades 3-6 have aphysical educational teacher, thusretaining some of the benefits of the fused
programformerly used.
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Find|e':,-

Principds
1967 - Nadine Machesney

FINDLEY SCHOOL
3000 Cambridge
Site2.1 acres

Thefirst wing of Findley elementary school wasopenedin
1966. It wasaprimary unit of nineroomssituated onland on
3000 Cambridgethat had been cleared of housesonly a
short timebefore. The school was named for William C.
Findley, long-time assi stant superintendent inthe Des
MoinesPublic Schoals.

Biographical sketch of Mr. Findley:

Mr. Findley wasbornin 1894 on the Winnebago Indian
reservation twenty-five miles southwest of Sioux City. His
father wasahome missionary to the Indianswho made up
about athird of the areapopulation. The future educator
spent thefirst five gradesin acountry school where he sat
sideby sidein adouble seat with alittle Indian boy named
Pete.

After hisfather’sdeath thefamily moved to Bellevue,
Nebraska, where hefinished hiselementary schooling and
entered BellevueAcademy. Helater graduated from
Bellevue College now joined with Hastings College.

During the next nineyears hewasteacher and principal in
severa schoolsbeginning in Fullerton Highandin 1916 was
superintendent at Beemer, Nebraska. Infact, thefirst
twenty-nineyearsof hislifewere spent in hisnative state of
Nebraska

Mr. Findley was superintendent at Rushvillein September,
1917 but histenurewasinterrupted in December when he
wascalledtotheU.S. Coast Artillery Corps. Trainingin
American campswasfollowed by an assignment to France
asaLieutenantinWorld War 1.

Upon hisreturnto civilian lifein 1919 he became superin-
tendent of Gordon and Gering public schools. Four years
later hewent to the State University of lowawhere hedid
graduate work and attained hisMaster’sdegree. Then he
had two additional years of experience asteacher and
principal inlowaCity el ementary schools.

In 1925, John W. Studebaker, Des M oines Superintendent
of Schools, and later United States Commissioner of Educa-
tion, impressed with the administrative and mathematical
skillsof theyoung school man, invited himtothe Des
Moinesschool system for athirty-nine-year stay. For three
yearsMr. Findley assumed the principal ship of Clarkson,
Saylor, Barton, and Bly Schools. From 1928 to 1933 the post
of Mathemati cs Supervisor was added to hisresponsibilities.

Meanwhile Mr. Findley was performing aserviceto the
educational publishing world. Scott Foresman’s Study
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Arithmetic needed primary textsand workbooks. Mr. Findley provided the textbooks, workbooksand his
nameto the nations’ most widely used elementary arithmetic series. The Study Arithmetic, authored by
Knight, Studebaker, Ruch and Findley was perhapsthe most popularly acclaimed arithmetic textin Ameri-
can and Canadian schoolsin the decade of the 30’sand early 40's.

The position of Director of Elementary Education wasassigned to Mr. Findley in 1933 and hetook his
placeinthe central office asamember of the administrative staff. Eight years|ater he was made A ssistant
Superintendent of Schoolsand remained inthat capacity until hisretirement in 1964.

In 1967 al of the primary studentsfrom Saylor elementary weretransferred to the new Findley School.
Grades5 and 6 at Saylor became apart of the Harding administrative routines. Saylor school wasofficially
closed at that point. It was planned that Clarkson School which was of ancient construction going back to
1888 would be discontinued in the near future and those students a so would attend the new Findley School.
Intheearly 1970’ san addition of ten teaching stations, art and music rooms, and media center were
planned to completion of the Findley building. Theremaining half-square block of houseswere purchased
and demolished so that the complete Findley sitewould thusbe availablefor alarger and expanded school.
Theteacher and citizen planning committeesthat hel ped plan the new Findley addition decided upon an
open-space concept with teaching stationsrather than individualized and separate classrooms. Inthefall of
1972 when the new Findley building was opened, it becamethen aK-6 attendance center with grades5
and 6 removed from Harding and the K-6 students from the Clarkson building transferred to thisnew unit.

The contractsfor thefirst part of Findley School werelet in June, 1966 in the amount of $213,645.00.
Thebuilding was completein November, 1967. The contract awarded in May, 1971 totaled $509,740.00 and
werefor 12 classroom teaching stations (much of this Open Space) library learning center and cafetorium
The new wing wasair-conditioned.

Findley School Programs1967-75

When Findley first openedin 1967 it wasatraditional school. Inthefall of 1971 theWisconsin Design
Program, aphonic program, and I.GE., Individually guided Education, wereintroduced to help meet the
needsof individua children. The new air-conditioned open space areawas completed in thefall of 1972.
TheFindley Staff was doubled to accommodate theincreased enrollment from Clarkson and Harding Junior
High, and at thistimeaTitle| Reading resourceteacher wasassigned to Findley. In 1972 Career Education
wasimplemented and aTitle | Math teacher was appointed. In 1974 a Specific L earning Resource teacher
was shared with Cattell School. Inthefall of 1975 a self-contained Specific L earning Resource room will
be opened to help children in the primary gradesliving inthe northeast area of thecity.

INn 1967 al of the primary studentsfrom Saylor elementary weretransferred to the new Findley School.
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FT. DESMOINES SCHOOL GradesK-3
Southeast 2nd and Porter
Site—I.8acres

Prior to 1923, Fort DesMoineswas an incorporated town
withitsown el ective officers. Children of the community
attended Maple Grove Consolidated School, but lack of
transportation facilitiesled to an election resultinginadecision
tolevy taxesfor aschool building to accommodate the pupils
of theneighborhood.

In 1910 an old one room building wastom down and atwo.
room, onestory structure built, In 1914 the roof wasraised
and two rooms added above. In 1916 roomswere added on
the south making atotal of six class- rooms. Thiswasthe
building turned over to the DesMoines School Districtin 1926
when it became apart of that school system.

At thetimethe corporation of Fort DesMoineswasdis-
solvedin 1923, the Town Hall (which wason the northwest
corner of the present school grounds) wasremodeled asa
kindergarten room. The building burned on February 26, 1926.
From 1923 to 1926 the Fort Des M oines School District
continued separately even though thetown of Fort Des
M oines had been dissolved. Asnoted above, it joined the Des
Moines Public Schoolsin 1926.

In 1938 plansweremadeto remodel the building. The
entrance was changed, aprincipal’s office made and the
community room on thetop floor wasdivided into two regular
classrooms. Thebuilding asit now standshas six classrooms,
two on each floor. After third gradeall pupilsstill attend
Mitchell School.

With the opening of thenew Lovejoy School inthefall of
1972 eased the enrolIment pressuresupon Mitchell. However,
it was decided to maintain the Ft. Des M oines attendance
center asafeeder unit to Mitchell elementary rather thanto
discontinueit at thistime. Thisdecision wasfurther reinforced
in September, 1973, when Maple Grove, School at S. W. Sth
and Army Post Road was closed and again the decision was
madeto retain Ft. DesMoines School asaseparate entity. In
themid-1970s Ft. DesMoines School continuesasa
undepartmentalized program for gradesK-4.

Since Fort DesMoinesand Mitchell schoolssharethe same
attendance area, studentsare transferred between schoolsin
order to provideamoreindividualized program. Thereisa
joint Fort DesMoines- Mitchell PTA and school advisory
council. Pupilsfrom both school s attend joint school assem-
blies, track and field day, etc. and take frequent school trips
together. Also pupilsfrom Fort DesMoinestake part in band
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activitiesat Mitchell and are represented by the Fort Des
Moines- Mitchell student council. Community education
classesare offered to students, parents, and other members
of thecommunity at both schools. Other programsincludedin
the curriculum of Fort DesMoinesElementary are:

Volunteer program

Titlel Reading and Mathematics
SpecificLearning Disahilities
Speech Therapy

Instructional MediaCenter
Career Education

Student Tutors

GARTON SCHOOL GradesK-6
East 24th and Hull
Site-10.2 acres

Garton School was opened in September, 1958. It was
built in responseto avast housing areathat sprang up inthe
1950s. The street department of the City of DesMoineshad
not paved any streetsin thisareasincethey werewaiting for
the sewer work to be done.

Theresult wasthat for thefirst timein decades, the Des
MoinesPublic Schoolshad to build outsidetoil etsfor school
children. These outside unitsindeed added anew educational
dimensionfor “city” children. Thetoiletswere used for .
severa weeks. Thememory of these unitslingered onand T -
even aslate asthe 1962 school bond €l ection therewere e e
guestions by interested citizens“Why DesMoineswas — .
building new schoolswith outsidetoilets?”

Garton streetswere not paved for about two and ahalf )
years. Each Spring variousfaculty members, and the princi- Datesof constrgctl onal' _
pal, would contribute mufflersand other parts beneath their 1965 (first addiition)
carsto the mud morassthat was called astreet. o .

Thebuilding was named in honor of George Gartonwho Principasof Gartoninclude
was Secretary to the Board of Education for 27 years. The 1958 - 1966 L oRetta Patrick
Garton family wasaprominent East DesMoinesfamily. 1966 - 1971 L orraine McFadden

1971- Harry Elder

Garton

GARTON IN 1975-76

Inthemid-1970's Garton Elementary School faces some of
the declining enrollment problemsthat other DesMoines
Schoolsarefacing. Garton continuesto maintain asix-unit
programin grades 5-6 with the art teacher serving another
building half time. GradesK-4 continueonan
undepartmentalized bas's.
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GARTON IN 1975-76

Inthemid-] 970's Garton Elementary School faces some of the declining enrollment problemsthat other Des
Moines Schoolsarefacing. Garton continuesto maintain asix-unit programin grades 5-6 with the art teacher
serving another building half time. Grades K -4 continue on an undepartmentalized basis.

During the past two years Garton has been “paired” with Logan School in aprogram called “ Shared Activi-
ties’. Many worthwhileactivitieshave been planned in all gradelevels. Timewas spent in sharing field trips,
educational films, physical education, scienceand basic skills subject matter. Most of the activity wascon-
ducted at gradelevel for aperiod of one-half day but in the 5th and 6th grades Garton and L ogan exchanged
about 15-5th and 15 sixth grade studentsfor aperiod of seven half daysto participatein unitsin science,
literature, physical education.

InAugust of 1973 Garton requested permission to participatein Career Education. We were accepted and
during the past two yearswe haveincorporated this concept into our curriculum.

In September of 1973 Garton initiated “ Parent Orientation Week” . Thisprovided an opportunity for parents
tovisit their child’steacher and get apreview of the“thingsto come”. It wasastart in our awareness pro-
gram which encouraged parentsto become“ School Volunteers’” and become activein Garton activities.

In 1974 Community Education sponsored a Pre-School classof 20 studentswhichisscheduled for three
half-daysweekly.

Garton hashad an excellent Safety Patrol Program. The patrol captains during the school year of 1966,
1969, 1972, 1973 won first placeinthe AAA Safety Contest and won expense paid tripsfor the captain and
Safety Patrol Supervisor.

The Garton Staff participated in aFirst Aid Coursefirst offered to entire school staffsin 1974 and al
participantsreceived their American National Red Cross Certificates.

GRANGER SCHOOL GradesK-6
S.E. 2nd and L each Street
Site-10.0 acres

Thefirst six rooms, of Barlow Granger School were
completed inAugust, 1954, the $452,000 addition, includ-
ing 14 regular classrooms, akindergarten, apractical arts
room, agymnasium, and kitchenfacilities, was completed
in1957. Thissingle-story structurewas placed on asite
of ten acres. Wetherell and Harrison werethe architects.

The School Board recommended that the el ementary
Datesof Con.struction school at South Union and Leach Avenue be named

-1954 One-third Barlow Granger Elementary School. Thefollowingisan
1957 Two-thirds igg;rpt fromthe Granger PT.A. bulletin of February,

“BARLOW GRANGER-born 1816, in New York. At
the age of 13 he quit school to become an apprentice
printer. In 1846 hejourneyed west - by coachto St.
Louis; to Keokuk on steamboat; to Fairfield by coach; and
onto DesMoinesby horseand buggy. At that timethe
population of DesMoineswas 127.

Barlow Granger wasthe editor of thefirst newspaper
published in DesMoines, thelowaStar. Vol. 1, No. 1,

- 4 |

Granger

Principasof Granger School include:
1954 - 1963 LucilleTruitt
1963 - 1967 L orenaRiebhoff
1967- Daniel Priest
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was dated July 26, 1849. Hewas one of the most widely known of the early settlers. The presswas set
upinalog cabin on Second Street near Vine. Thetown wasknown asFort DesMoines.

Granger needed no reporters because he knew every family intown. He bought the pressat lowa
City and sent to Keokuk for the paper. The lowa Star was financed by a Curtis Bates, who later
became acandidate for governor. Politicians often in that day sponsored newspapersin order to rush
their personal political aspirations

Barlow Granger was asked to bethe editor. He announced hiseditoria policiesin spite of the political
leanings of the owner, stating that the paper would publish hisown viewsas* purely individua” but
neverthel essthe Star would be“ Firmly, decidedly, radically democratic.” However, the editor would hold
himself responsible to no party, sect, creed or clique.”

Forty of the eighty acresof land purchased by Granger for ahomestead isnow Pioneer Park reached
over S.E. 6th Street and Hartford Avenue, one of the oldest streetsin DesMoines. Thissouthside
location became noted for itshospitality and Granger built astone and wood house onthe site. Part of
thishouse, in so far aswe can discover, isstill apart of the custodian’sresidence. Thewell, 370 feet
deep, was sunk by Granger around 1900, three years before hisdeath, and furnished the water used by
the park when it wasfirst established by the city. He brought birch treesfrom Wisconsin and planted
them on his property and otherwise beautifiedit.

The park custodian, when the Pioneer Park was established, had ascrapbook owned by Barlow
Granger inwhich he had kept clippings, especially poems he had gleaned from magazines and other
newspapers. It isnoted that in every issue of the lowa Star when Granger was editor, apoem appeared
onthefront page. Heimprinted hiscultural and literary accomplishmentson all who read the paper.

Hewasawell educated man, alawyer by profession. He practiced in DesMoines, ran areal estate
business, became prosecuting attorney and was made judge of the County Court when Byron Rice, our
first school teacher, resigned that position. Hewasinfluentia in molding public opinionintheearly days
of DesMoines. Many storiesof thisestimable gentleman aretold in numerous articles and books about
early DesMoines.

In 1881 the Early SettlersAssociation held areunion at the home of Barlow Granger, “two miles south
of the statehouse’. His southside affiliations are furthered by the fact that he was mayor of DesMoines
oneterm and of Sevastopol for twoterms. Sevastopol is, of course, apart of the south side.

GRANGER- 1975-76

Because of the development of new housing inthearea, Granger Elementary School increased its
enrollment intheearly 1970sto 770. With the opening of Love oy School and the additionsto
Jackson School and Park Avenue School, two hundred pupilswere sent to those schoolsfrom
Granger. Sincethen Granger School has been maintai ning steady enrollmentsasnew housing contin-
uesto developinthevicinity during themid-1970s.

Inrecent years” Career Education” has become animportant part of the curriculum. There hasbeen
ateam-teaching project in second gradefor anumber of years. Fourth gradewill be semi-departmen-
talized in 1975-76. Other lower grades are undepartmentalized. Grades 5 and 6 are departmentalized
with oneteacher teaching reading skillsin 5th grade and another teacher teaching reading skillsin 6th
grade. Thereisa so ateacher that teaches social studiesand scienceto all 5th and 6th graders. There
aretheusua arithmetic, art, music, and physical education teachersin grades5and 6.
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Greenwood

Datesof congtruction
1901
1924
1961 (northwing)

Principalsof Greenwood School include:
1901 - 1909 Gertrude Burt

1909- 1912 NellieElliott

1912 - 1925 NellieWarren

1925 - 1944 Frances Umpleby
1944 - 1945 Murray Work

1945 - 1952 L orene Lightfoot

1952 - 1958 Robert Langerak
1958- 1972 LorraineKimball Reed
1972 - 1973 James Daugherty
1973- NicholasAabers

GREENWOOD SCHOOL GradesK-6
316 37th Street
Site-3.4 acres

Thehistory of Greenwood School extendsback to the
dayswhen it was aseparate school district serving the
western most suburban area. Greenwood School was
named for the spaci ouswoods which surrounded the school
area. Thefirst building waslocated near Thirty-fifthand
Ingersoll. Thepresent building at Thirty-seventh Street,
south of Grand Avenue was constructed in 1901.

The Greenwood Park community incorporated asacity
in188 1. In 1890 it became apart of thecity of Des
Moines. The school district continued asaseparate entity
until 1900. At that timeit joined the West DesMoines
Schoolsand sent itshigh school studentsto the outstanding
high school that wasrecently built at 15th and Center-\West
High.

Theroster of PTA presidentsand officers, Advisory
Board membersand studentswho have attended Green-
wood throughout itsexistencerevea the namesof many
prominent families and personswho have made contribu-
tionstothelife of thecity of DesMoines, the state of lowa
and the United States.

Greenwood continuesto be aleader in the education of
our city’syoung people. Thevarious programsin operation
attest to the fact that we are concerned about all students
that attend our school. Greenwood participatesasboth a
receiving and sending school inthe District’s Voluntary
Transfer Program. We have community and adult educa-
tion classes and haveincorporated the career education
concept into our total school program. TheWisconsin
Design Reading Management System assistsusin our total
reading programin the primary grades and we havethe
serviceof aTitlel Reading and Math Resource person as
well asal earning Disability Resource person.

TheKindergarten program hasincorporated the“ strate-
giesfor Early Childhood Education’ plan and wealso have
the Kindergarten Language Enrichment Program.
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HANAWALT SCHOOL  GradesK-6
56th Street and Roberston Drive
Site-4.8 acres

Therewerefour teachers assigned to Hanawalt when
it openedin 1913. Slow development of theareahas
madefuture additionsdubious. Inthe early 1960'sthe
gradesof 5and 6 were sent to thenew Merrill Jr. High
School. In February, 1965, aoneroom portableunit
costing $10,000 was placed north of the present building
to accommodate one class of fourth graders.

Dr. George P. Hanawalt aveteran medica man of the
last half of the 1800’s, practiced medicineand surgery in
DesMoinesfor 45 years, He was Surgeon-General of
the National Guard for 25 years. He served as President
of the Polk County Medical Society in 1877 and of the
StateMedica Society in 1880.

Theearly 1970s saw planning for the addition of ten
classrooms, gym, and mediacenter on the Hanawalt
building. Thisaddition was basically onethat was planned
by the parents and faculty as being one of the open-
space concept. Withitsopeninginthefall of 1972 the
Frisbie school at 63rd and Muskogee was closed and
later demolished. The elementary studentsfrom both
Hanawalt and Frisbiewho formerly attended Merrill
junior high were now housed in their own elementary
building for thefirst timein many, many years. Hanawat
isan|GE, multi-unit school. The 1972 addition cost
$500,000.

TheHanawalt Elementary School hasembarked on
severa new and exciting programsduring the early part
of 1970's. The new programsinvolve studentsat all
levelswith some specialized programsfor certain
students. The new addition accommodates Unit A and B
(GradesK through 3). Alsoincluded inthe new addition
are specia serviceareas such as officesfor the Princi-
pal, Secretary, Nurse, aGymnasi um-Cafetorium and-an
Instructional Material Center. These special areas of
instruction such asArt, Music and Physical Education
servetheentire student body. TheOrigina Buildingis
used to accommodate studentsin Unit C (Grades4
through 6).

The new addition was planned according to an Open-
Space-Concept which lendsitself to the newer develop-
mentsin educational organization-to an organi zationa
plan which makespossible abetter approach tothe
varying needsof pupils. Individualy Guided Education
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Datesof congtruction
1913
1919
1972

Principasof Hanawalt include:
1913- 1916 Elizabeth Robb
1916 - 1918 EllaBaker

1918- 1919 LuluAuracher
1920- 1925 NellieWarren
1925 - 1953 Frances Umpleby
1943 - 1945 Murray Work
1945- 1952 LoreneLightfoot
1952 - 1958 Robert Langerak
1958- 1966 L orraine Kimball Reed
1966 - 1968 Howard Hart
1968 - 1971 Harry Elder

1971 - 1975 MelvinKiner
1975-  Don Shaw



and Team Teaching are natural partnersin accomplishing thisgoal.

TheHanawat School philosophy hasbeen to devel op programsthat places emphasison theindividual
student - hisability, hisrateof learning, hisstyle of learning and hisprogress.

Inthefall of 1972thel.GE. Program wasinitiated at Hanawalt. |.GE. isan approach to instruction that
providesaframework for individualizing instruction -INDIVIDUALLY GUIDED EDUCATION. It hasbeen
achieved through an in-service program designed to reorgani ze and redirect thetime, talents, and energy of al
concerned with the educational process.

Instructional processesrepresent the heart of 1.GE. These processes provide appropriate learning programs
for each student built on acontinuous cycle of findings out where each student isand how he got there
(assessment), deciding what he needsto learn next (specifying objectives), selecting the best waysfor himto
attain those objectives (diversified learning opportunities), and making surethat he has met them (reassess-
ment).

Theteachersassigned to each Unit, under the direction of the Unit Leader, areresponsiblefor all instruction
and supervision of studentswithin that Unit. All planning isdonetogether asateam making it possibleto
improveinstruction through sharing of ideas and through teacher concentration on hisor her areas of strength.

HILLISSCHOOL GradesK-6
56th and Hickman
Site-7.5 acres

The old wooden temporary building that wasmoved to
thesitein 1949 was called Tower School. It was so named
because of itsproximity of thewater tower at 48th and
Hickman.

Themain structure of 22 roomswas named after Mrs.
CoraBussey Hilliswho wasinstrumental in organizing the
lowaCongressof Mothers. Mrs. Hillismade many other

i contributionsas noted bel ow.

Datesof construction Mrs. CoraBussey Hilliswasborn at Bloomfield, lowa,
1949 An annex unit was moved to Site in 1858. Shegrew up in New Orleansbut in 1880 she
1953 Main building of ISrooms married |saac LeaHillisand moved to DesMoines.

1961 4 room addition at east end of In 1887 shewas one of theincorporators of the Des
huilding MoinesWomen's Club, She soon began her notable career

asaworker and organizer in the cause of child welfare by
securing thefirst public bath housein DesMoinesfor
o T : . children, sothey couldin safety enjoy theriver.
Frindipalsof HillisSchool include: In 1898 she attended, in Washington, D. C., the second
1949-1953 James L. Daugherty :
meeting of the Congress of Mothersasadelegatefrom
1953-1962 Pearl L eander : )
1962-1966 Don Brubak thelowa Child Study Society, adepartment of thelowa
196 6- 1968 K on r#R ir_ State TeachersA ssociation. Soon thereafter she organized
- ennet xankin thelowa Congressof Mothers.
1968-1973 Eleanor Singer Sheintroduced the penny savings systeminthe Des
1973-  Joseph Turner Moinesschoolsandin 1901 secured thefirst children’s
roominthelowaM ethodist Hospital. In 1902 she opened
apublic sewing roomin connection with the DesMoines
public schools, where children who were out of school for
lack of clothing were supplied with garments by mothers
clubs.
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In 1904 she organized the lowa Child Welfare Association and in 1915 urged the legislature to adopt abill
providing for the establishment of aChild Welfare Research Station at the University of lowa. This Station
wasset upin 1917, having asitsobjective the investigation of the best scientific methods of conserving and

developing thenormal child. Thisstation wasthefirst of itskind in the United States and set the example

which othershavefollowed.

Itisindeed fitting and proper that the Board of Education named an el ementary school to honor Mrs. Hillis,
apioneer in child welfarewho perhaps had no equal inthe country.

In 1973 it became apparent that enrollmentsat Hilliswere decliningto a point that it would be possibleto
houseall of the Riley studentsinthe Hillisschool building. Thus, adecisionwasmadeto close Riley at the
end of the 1972-73 school year. Those studentswere given the option of attending several elementary
schoolsbut most chose the Hillis attendance center at their closest school. Inthemid 1970sHillishasan
underpartmentalized program for grades K4 and asix-unit plan B program for grades5 and 6. Inthe six-unit
Plan B program the art and music teachersremain in the buildings and teacher arithmetic. Hillishasbeen an
EEO receiving school sinceinception of thevoluntary transfer programin 1969.

During the 1974-75 school year astudent council was begun, and asan activity the council adopted the

“Hound” asthe school mascot.

Inthe 1975-76 school year the Hillis staff will implement acontinuous progressreading planinan effort to
improveinstruction. During the 1975-76 school year we plan to observethe silver anniversary of the con-

struction of the permanent building.

HOAK SCHOOL GradesK-5
18th Street and McKinley
Site-7.7 acres

Hoak School was opened in September, 1955. It was
named in honor of Percy E. Hoak, long time member of
the school board. Mrs. Patrick, the principal, received
the picture of Mr. Hoak from Mrs. Hoak during the
1956-57 school year. Thefamily also presented abronze
statue of aboy in honor of Mr. Hoak.

In 1956-57 adecision was made not to enlarge Hoak
School because of new traffic patternsat the Des
Moinesairport. When originaly planned this matter had
been checked out with appropriate authoritiesand was
not aproblem. Pupilsfor grades5 and 6 may attend
Wright School whichisnearby. Hoak and Wright Schools
areoperated asasingleunit under thejurisdiction of the
sameprincipd.

Inthemid-1970sHoak elementary school isoperating
on aK-5 undepartmentalized program.

During thistime declining student popul ation has
created spacefor two new programs. (1) atherapeutic
learning center for children with emotiona problems
severeenoughto prevent their functioning withina
regular classroom, and (2) alearning disabilitiesresource
teacher to providefor the specific needsof learning
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Datesof construction -- 1955

Principalsof Hoak School include:
1955 - 1956 Kenneth Rouse
1956 - 1957 L oRetta Patrick
1957 - 1961 Ruth Pritchard
1961 - 1965 JamesL . Daugherty
1965 - 1972 Mildred Kaisand



disabled students. Also, space has been accrued through
student attritionto allow studentsto utilizeadoubleroomfor
physical education activities.

Thesmall school atmosphere allowsfor acloserelation-
ship to be devel oped between students, parents, and teach-
ers, andthis“caring” climateisperhapsthe most singular
characteristic of the school.

Howe
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Datesof construction
1919 One-fourth
1925 One-fourth
1951 One-fourth
1957 One-fourth

Principas who have served at Howeinclude:
1907 - 1908 LorettaBlake
1908 - 1909 |va Scott
1909 - 1913 Elizabeth Culbertson
1913- 1915 Jeanette Mills
1915- 1939 Alice Bradshaw
1939- 1946 Ednal. E. Peterson
1946 - 1949 K enneth Rouse
1949 - 1955 Merle Wilson
1955 - 1963 Paul Pace
1963 - Nov. 1965 LucileTruitt
Nov. 1965 William Molleck

HOWE SCHOOL GradesK-6
S.E. 7thand Indianola
Site-4.3 acres

Howe School initspresent location replaced theold
“Howe” schooal, aframebuilding located at S.E. 7th and
Davis. The*“old” Howewasknown originally as Sevastopol
School whichtook itsnamefromthe, area.

The school honorsthe name of JuliaWard Howefamed
author of thewordsof “The Battle Hymn of the Republic.”

A former student of the 1890's, 0. J. Potthoff, haswritten
of Mrs. Howe'svisit to the school:

“Mrs. Howe visited the Howe School and | remember her
very well but | don’t just remember what year it was-
somewhere around 1895 or 1896. The class sang her song
and she seemed quite pleased.”

Onenight during the Civil War, JulieWard Howe, fell
ad eep in her Washington hotel with the melody of asouth-
ern camp meeting tuneringingin her ears. Later she awoke,
rose and wrote the words of what became, “ The Battle
Hymn of the Republic.” She said the words seemed to come
to her asarevelation.

Thissong captured the mindsand hearts of the northern
armiesand was sung asamarching tune. Even President
Lincolnenjoyedsingingit.

After thewar, Mrs. Howe became awomen’s suffrage
leader and continued to write, turning out travel books,
essaysand poetry. But no poem shewrote ever again
reached the heights of “ The Battle Hymn of the Republic”.

In 1882 the JuliaWard Howe School was opened with
only two roomsfor pupilsuptothefourth grade. Theolder
children had to go to Washington School. Mr. Parishwasthe
first principal of both Washington and Howe schools.

By the mid-1970'senrollment pressures at Howe Elemen-
tary have been eased by the enlargement of Jacksonto a
full elementary unit aswell asthe construction of Lovejoy
Elementary School and the boundary adjustmentswith
Granger. It uses an undepartmentalized program for grades
K-4 and hasasix-unit plan A for grades5and 6. It hasa
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family learning center asapart of the adult education outreach.

HOWEIN THE 1970's

Howe hasworked hard to keep pace with the many improvementsin education and had added many
programsto meet the needs of its students. In 1970 the old auditorium was converted to an instructional
mediacenter becoming thefirst of itstypein the elementary schools. Thisisan areawhereall types of
mediaare consolidated for student use such asbooks, magazines, filmstripes, tapes, T.V., 16mm films,
overhead transparencies, cassettes, etc.

AsDesMoinesgrew so did thetraffic on IndianolaRoad and for saf ety purposes anew crossover was
constructed in 1971. Parents accepted it with reservationsbut it has proved to be abeneficial additionto
Howe.

In1972 aprogram called SPURT (Specia Program Utilizing aResource Teacher) wasadded and it
helped mildly handicappedin LD, ED, and EMR. Thiswasastate financed program that isnow aDes
Moinesdistrict supported program.

Thenin 1973 afamily learning program wasinitiated and thiswasan adult education concept to improve
adult education through workshopsand child/parent rel ationships.

In 1974 still another program got off the ground and it wastitled Therapeutic Learning Center whichis
designed for emotionally disturbed childrenin cooperation with Orchard Place.

HUBBELL SCHOOL GradesK-6
42nd and Center Hubbell
Site-5.0 acres

Hubbell School was named in honor of Frederick M.
Hubbell, philanthropist, and wedthiest lowan inthe history of
the state. Arriving herein 1885 from hishomein Connecticut
at the age of sixteen, heworked, studied and invested inland.
Later hebecame aleading lawyer and founded the Equitable
Life Insurance Co. of lowa. Hewasalso arailroad financier w_ﬂ,“#.r = -
and builder aswell asredl estateinvestor and public utilities
magnate. He was devoted to Des Moines and invested here,
where he made hisfortune. Just how much he contributed to

Datesof construction

the growth and devel opment of Des M oines cannot be 1910 One-half
estimated. 1917 One-fourth
1925 One-fourth

SomeHighlightsabout Hubbell History 1955 Thecommunity roomwas

On September 15, 1908 a petition was presented to the Des remodeledinto two classrooms.
Moines school board by H. C. Wallace, representing West
University Place, asking for an additional schoolhouse. The Principalsof Hubbell School include:
property selected was designated as Lot 32 located at 42nd 1910-1917 AmeliaMorton
Street and Woodland Avenue, for which $4,250.00 was paid. 1917-1923 H.D. Eickelberg
Bidswere called for in 1909 and the contract was awarded to 1923-1939 LauraP. Matthews
Martin Conroy who presented the, lowest bid-$47,147.00. 1939-1958 BlancheV. Toohey
“Thebuildingisfireresistiveand two storiesin height. The 1958-1965 Mildred E. Kaisand
brick wallsare 12 and 16 inchesthick; floorsare concrete; 1965-1971 Ann Schott
incombustible partitions; oak trim; incombustible cellings, wood 1971-1973 Howard Miller
roof over concrete ceiling. There aretwo open stairwaysin 1973-1974 Eleanor Singer

1974-  Irene Perkins
Page 62



the hall, basement to second floor. The basement containsagymnasium, fan room and classrooms; first
floor nurse’ sroom, office, supply room and classrooms; second floor auditorium and classrooms.”

Onthemotion of J. B. Sullivan and seconded by C. H. Martin, at the February, 1909 meeting of the
school board, “the school building to be erected on 42nd and Woodland Avenueisto be known asthe
Frederick M. Hubbell School”. Carried.

InMay, 1910 thirty feet a ong the south side of the Hubbell School ground was given up for the use of
thecity in opening Center Street.

Hubbell School openedinthefall of 191 1. MissAmeliaMorton wasthe principal and therewas astaff
of seventeachers- MissEmmaBradley, MissMary Heaton, Mrs. E. D. Brunn, MissKatherine Hal ey,
MissElizabeth Mason, MissJessie E. Dicksand MissAdeline Winterble.

In 1917 the south wing was added to the original building, first and second floors providing additional
spacefor classroomsand a, community room in the basement. In 1922 Hubbell School served 670 chil-
drenineight grades; by 1923 therewere 610 children in six grades, the seventh and eighth grade pupils
attending junior high school inthe new Roosevelt High School. In 1925 the north wing was added giving
the school agymnasium, classroomsand auditorium. In 1930 there were twenty classrooms, three special
roomsand an enrollment of 563. In 1955 the community room was converted into two more classrooms.

The student popul ation hasmaintained itself through the yearsin the Hubbel | district and continuesinto
the 70’s. A new addition of two kindergarten classroomswas openedin, 1971. Thisenabled the
utilization of theformer kindergarten room into amedialearning center. Hubbell School inthemid-
1970sisan Equa Education Opportunitiesreceiving school. Thelarge playground north of the school
formerly wasat an elevation of eight to ten feet below street level. Extensivefilling of dirt brought thisup
to the height of the Hubbell playground adjacent to the building. The addition of thetwo roomsin 1971
enabled theremoval of two portable classroomsthat had been placed therein the 1960s. A landmark
along onthe Hubbell-Roosevelt sitewasthetall smokestack that wasremoved intheearly 1970. This
saw the conversion of the heating plant and theinstallation of new boilersat the heating plant and
conversionto gasand oil. With theenergy crisisof themid- 1970’'s someone has commented that we
probably should have retained the coal-stoked furnacesand thetal | landmark smokestack to utilizethe
lowacoal. Forecasts by hindsight are easier to make.

During the 1974-75 school year there were eighteen teachers, asecretary, an associate, aVoluntary
Transfer associateand 2.5 custodiansat Hubbell. Also, the part time staff included anurse, library
associate, speech therapist, Titlel math and reading teacher and alLearning DisabilitiesTeacher. The
school enrollment was 419 studentsrepresenting 278 families.
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JACKSON SCHOOL GradesK-6
I ndianolaRoad and Watrous
Site-l 1.5acres

Andrew Jackson School openeditsdoorsin January,
1962, to serve 184 childrenin kindergarten through third
grade. The school islocated on aspacioussiteon
IndianolaRoad near WatrousAvenue, closeto the bound-
ary lineof southeast DesMoines. Theglasswalls, exterior
corridors, and colored ceramic brick extend thelength on
each side of theground-hugging structure, whichisto be
thefirst wingin the construction of acompleteschool. This
$305,000 building was designed by ArchitectsAssociated
of DesMoaines.

Thereis acontinuousturnover in pupil ‘ personnel dueto
themobility of thearea. Themohility isaresult of alow-
economic section and temporary residence provided by
threetrailer courts. At the present time, a40-homehousing
project isunder construction directly west of the school.

Beginning with the 1963-64 school year the
undepartmentalized program was extended to, include
fourth grade.

The75th Unit of the Parent-Teacher Associationwas
organized at Jackson Elementary School on October 2,
1962, with Mrs. Ben Bingaman asthefirst president. The
PTA membership totaled 69 parents, teachers, and friends
thefirst year.

INn 1972 an addition of ten classrooms, gym and media
center were added to the primary wing of the Jackson
building. The cost was $525,333.00. The addition wasfar
different than the onevisuaized whenthe building wasfirst
opened in 1962. Thecitizensand teacher committeesthat
helped plan the new addition at Jackson opted for the
open-classroom concept. Thustheteaching stationsthat
were added at Jackson essentialy revolve about acentral -
ized mediacenter for al of the upper graderoomsto
utilize. Fully carpeted and air conditioned asareal of the
open-space classroom additions of the 1970s, it isindeed
afunctional educational unit. The school usesthel GE-

I ndividualized Guided Education program that most of the
other open- space schools have. Inlooking towardsthe
later 1970sit would seem that the new sewersinthe
southeast areamay open up new hous ng additionsthat
couldtax thefacilitiesat Jackson.
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Jackson

Date of construction-1962
1972 Addition of 10 Classrooms,
Gym and MediaCenter

Principa sof Jackson School include:
1962 (6 months) Paul Pace
1965 - 1968 Joan Sherman
1962 - 1965 L orenaRiebhoff
1968 - Marion Pritchard



Jefferson Schoal,
3th and Park Avenue

Datesof construction -- 1920

Principal sof Jefferson School include:
1909 - 1910 Mr. Stone
1910- 1918 J. W. Atchley
1918 - 1937 W. Lee Jordan
1937 - 1939 C. I. Pease
1939 - 1944 Murray Work
1944 - 1952 Nelle Cunningham
1952 - 1957 Mildred Shay
1957 - 1963 Ruth Pritchard
1963 - 1966 Robert Langerak
1966 - 1968 Joan Sherman
1968 - 1971 Harry Elder

1971

Louise Silver

JEFFERSON SCHOOL GradesK-6
2425 \Watrous
Site-2.7 acres

Thegenera consolidation of schoolsinand around Des
Moinesthat took placein 1907 also included the Oak
Grovedidtrict. Thisinvolved the present Jefferson School
aswell assomeland that wasoutsidethecity.

The present brick school at SW 30th and Park Avenue
wasbuiltin 1920. It replaced athree room structure of
wood and brick which served thetypically rural commu-
nity for many yearsprior to that time. It enrolled grades
kindergartenthrough eighth.

For many yearsafter the* new” building wasbuilt, the
pupilswalked the dirt roadsthat served the neighbor-
hood. Asmore houseswere built and improved roads
were constructed there becametraffic hazards.

Jefferson School continued to provideaprogramfor
grades K-8 until enrollment pressure madeit necessary to
transfer the seventh and eighth gradesto Lincolninthe
late 1940's. Somefifth gradersand al thesixth grade
pupilsaretaken by busto Wright School.

Jefferson School wasnamed in honor of President
Thomas Jefferson one of theintellectud giantsof our
foundingera.

A new Jefferson elementary building wasplannedfor the
siteat 2425 WatrousAvenue. The construction contracts
totaled $968,491.00. With itsopening in September,
1972, the old Jefferson School at S.W. 30th and Park
Avenuewas closed and thewindows boarded up. The
new structure was planned according to the open-space
concept, utilizing severa levelssinceit washbuiltintothe
sideof thehill. Ampleschool groundshaveprovided a
setting for anatural forest areawith awidevariety of
trees, plantsand shrubs being planted as an outdoor

ecol ogy-type classroom. The upper elementary grades
from Jeffersonwho formerly attended Brody Junior High
School sincethetimewhen Brody opened now areable
to behousedinthe new. Jefferson School. Thebuilding
utilized thel GE multi-unit program. Continued expansion
of new housing now only inthe Camelot areabut inthe
areaaround S.W. 42nd and Park Avenueindicate that
enrollmentswill beclimbingintheyearsahead.
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KING SCHOOL GradesK-6
1849 Forest
Site—3 acres

Martin Luther King, Jr. (1929-1968) BorninAtlanta,
Georgia, son and grandson of Baptist ministers. Graduated
from Morehouse College, completed advanced studies at
Crozer Theologica Seminary and Boston University. Hewas
ordainedin 1947. He married Coretta Scott in 1953 and
became pastor of Dexter Avenue Baptist Churchin Mont-
gomery, Alabama, in 1957.

Hereceived the 1964 Nobel Peace Prizefor hiswork in
leading non- violent demongtrationsfor Negrorights. This
program of non-violencewasbased on Christian concepts,
Thoreau’sand Gandhi’ swritingsand practices.

Hewas assassinated in Memphis, Tennessee, in 1968 and
buriedinAtlanta, Georgia, leaving hiswidow and four
children.

A History of Martin Luther King Elementary School
1849 Forest Avenue, DesMoines, lowa

Thehistory of Martin Luther King School goesback to
two elementary schools—Kirkwood School |ocated at 27th
and Clark and Nash School located at 1326-16th Street.
Generation upon generation had passed through the ha s of
thesetwo buildingsthat wereto be- comeMartin Luther
King Schooal.

IN1968, planswere beginningto takeformwhichwould
eventudly resultinanew, singleeducationd facility toreplace
Nash and Kirkwood. The Board of Education and other
concerned citizensweretaking anew look at processes used
for new school devel opment.

In 1971, aCharrettewasheld to begin thefina stagesof
planning for thesinglefecility. Charrettewasdefined asa
vehicleincluded parents, senior citizens, students, teachers
adminigtrators, businessmen, agency representatives, reli-
giousleadersuniversity personnel and specia consultants.

Dr. CharlesLink and Dr. Donald Brubaker served as
coordinatorsof the Charrette processand wereresponsible
for the developmental team selected to interpret the educa-
tiond findingsof the Charrette participantsfrom the Nash/
Kirkwood community.

From the Charrette, cameahumanistic, multi-cultured
directionto program development and facility planning. The
process produced an educational facility which wasto:
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Constructed 1974

Principasof King Include:
1973-1974 Howard Hart
1974-1975 DonWilliams
1975- Jm Mitchell
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Logan

Dates of construction -- 1895, 1911, 1962

Principal of Logan School include:
1907 - 1911 Mary Doran
1911 - 1914 EmmaBradley
1914 - 1916 Jennie Holmberg
1916 - 1918 BelleMcConnédll (Kindey)
1918 - 1921 Cora Parr
1921 - 1936 AnnaHartigan
1936 - 1944 EllaBaker
1944 - 1952 Ruth Pritchard
1952 - 1965 Kenneth Rankin
1965 - 1972 Don Shaw
1972-  Udell Cason, Jr.

1) provideacurriculum of relevancy.

2) providefor development of self-worth and pride
through the educational programs.

3) servetherecredationa and health needsof thetotal
community,

4) draw studentsfrom other communitiesinan effort
to createamulti-cultured educational setting.

The school to be an open-spaced building with an
individualized gpproachtolearning. Thelearning design
wasto serveadultsaswell aschildren.

Thecitizensof DesMoines|ndependent Community
School Didtrict voted bondsfor the construction of the new
building and in 1972 began to build thisfine new structure.

Martin Luther King School opened itsdoorsin Septem-
ber of 1974 with an enrollment of 480 students.

LOGAN SCHOOL GradesK-6
East 17th and Garfield
Site-4.3 acres

L ogan School wasin the Pleasant Corner School
District which waslater renamed the Capitol Park School
District. The high school for Capitol Park waslocated on
the second floor of the present Wallace School

L ogan wasnamed for General John Alexander Logan of
Civil War fame. Hedied in 1886.

Early recordsrecord thefollowing milestones:

1900-Started Department of Drawingin Capitol Park
Schools. Therewasaprogramfor all gradesand high
schoolsin charcoal, pencil, crayola, water colorsand
SCISSOrs.

1905-Capitol Park School Board purchased manual
training equipment for both grammar and high schoals.

1907-Pleasant Corner consolidated with 16 other
districtsto makethe DesMoines School District with 51
buildingsinal.

190-7-08 Logan addition paid $3,201.61. Thiswas
begun by Board of former Capitol Park School Digtrict.

1907-08 Number of high schoolsreduced fromsix to
three. “Capitol Park High School continued until Christmas
when theresignation of the principal seemed to makethe
timepropitiousfor closng thisschool aso.”
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1907-08 Six gradescontinued at L ogan, with grades 7-8 going to Capitol Park. Fiveteachersem-
ployed at Logan with 51.2 pupilsper teacher. Thiswasthe highest average enroliment inthecity.

Beginning in 1969 L ogan School becamethe one predominate black school inthedistrict that was
eligiblefor participation of white studentsinthevoluntary transfer program. Through the yearsanumber of
white students have elected to attend L ogan rather than their neighborhood school and to participateinthe
widevariety of programsthat are offered inthat building. L ogan has an undepartmentalized programfor
gradesK -3 and adepartmentalized program for grades4-6. Inthemid-1970sit hasTitlel Reading, Title
| Math K-4, an early learning center, Head Start, Follow Through, Titlel Child Development, Titlelll
Wisconsin Designed Reading M anagement Program. For after school hours, thereisacomponent of the

community cultural recreational program operated by the CDA.

Also, Logan hasparticipated inthe School-BusinessAlliance Program aswell asbeing one of six

school sparticipating inthe Shared Activities concept.

LONGFELLOW SCHOOL
East 7th and Fremont
Site-5.2 acres

Asearly as 1880, it was hecessary to have aschool-
houseinthearea, known asthe Fifth Wardin the East Des
Moines School District. Because of thisneed, Bremer
School was opened in a Swedish Church which stood at
DesMoinesand Second Streets. The peoplethen autho-
rized the School Board to purchaseland for anew school
inthewestern part of theward. It wasnot until 1882 that
the purchase was made, and thetract bought was on Pine
Street near Walker. The District also authorized the issu-
anceof bondsfor erection of aschoolhouseonthesite.
Thisschool wascalled Longfellow after the poet Henry
Wadsworth Longfellow.

In 1885, because of theincreasing school population,
three  moreroomswere added to thefirst structureand
two roomswere equipped inthe basement. From 1882 to
1901 the staff had increased from threeto, thirteen and the
enrollment from 204 to 51 1. By 1901 L ongfellow had the
largest enrollment inthe city. Owing to the very crowded
conditionsof thebuilding, in 1901 the boundarieswere
changed and additiona |and was purchased to alow for
another additionto the school. Thisenabled Longfellow to
returnto the seating capacity of 40 per room. Still more
children enrolled so the seating capacity per room had to
beincreased. In 1920 thelast addition to the school was
built, and at that timethe playground wasarranged in three
levels

In 1907 Ward Five was merged with the Independent
School Digtrict. At that timethe eval uation wasasfollows:
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Datesof construction-

Old Longfellow School-1882-1965
New Longfellow School-1961

Principasof Longfdlow include:

1881- 1884 FrancesLawrence
1884 - 1913 Syhil Jeffries

1913 - 1914 Elizabeth Culbertson
1914 - 1922 Anna Stohlgren
1933 - 1934 Edwin Miner

1934 - 1937 Robert Simpkins
1937 - 1939 Walter Trott, Jr.
1939 - 1944 Nédllie Cunningham
1944 - 1952 Kathryn Blanchard
1952 - 1954 L eonaWilcox

1954 - 1962 Patience Guthrie
1962 - 1964 Irene Perkins

1964 - 1970 Nadine Machesney
1970- 1971 MevinKiner

1971 - 1972 Robert McGraw
1973- Keith Banwart



Origina Cost $35,625.00
Lot 7,000.00
Furniture 2,375.00

Because of theroute of the DesMoinesFreeway, “old” Longfellow School wasrazed inthe
summer of 1962. A new site at East Seventh and Filmore Streetswas purchased.,

By thefall of 1962, anew Longfellow (often referred to as“ The GlassHouse”) was opened
to accommodate the children of old L ongfellow and Webster School, which a so had been razed
during thesummer. Thisconsisted of 13 classrooms, 2 al purposerooms, agymnasium, a
library, aspeech therapy center, music practice rooms, and compl ete officefacilities.

When Longfellow openedin 19,62, there were many vacant roomsbecause of thefreeway
and urban renewal program. Therewere 8 teachersand an enrollment of 189. In 1963, because
of the overcrowded conditionsin the M cK eeand Douglas School areas, children weretrans-
ported to Longfellow by public school bus, and 12 classroomswere then used. A hot lunch
programwasinitiated at L ongfellow the sameyear, and alibrary aidewas added to the staff.

In 1964, with second gradefrom McKeg, third, fifth, and sixth gradesfrom Douglasand the
opening of asecond classfor retarded children, al room facilitieswere being used whichin-
cluded theuse of thetwo al purposeroomsasfour classrooms. The enrollment was 454 (235
buschildren) and therewere seventeen teachers, aprincipal, aclerk, alibrary aide, anurse, two
custodians, and four cafeteriaworkers.

Longfellow isanother eementary school that isfedling theforcesof declining enrollments. It
maintainsakK-6 undepartmentalized program for the classrooms. For specia programsit has
Head Start, Follow Throughin .gradesK-3, Titlel ReadinginK-6, Titlel MathinK-4, and a
Titlelll Learning DisabilitiesProgram.
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Loveoy School GradesK-6
801 S.E. KenyonAve.
Site- 10.1 acres

Love oy Elementary School opened in September, 1972,
on 10.1 acresitein southeast DesMoines. It wasbuilt to
accommodate the new housing that had devel oped and had
resulted in overcrowding at Mitchell School and Granger
School. Thebeginning enrollment at Lovejoy was 367, and
contrary towhat ishappening in most DesMoinesschools,
theenrollment isincreasing—446 for the Fall of 1975. : !

Thebrick building wasbuilt on the open space concept Lovejoy
with ingtructional mediacenter asthefoca point of the
building. Theschool began by utilizing thel GE organizationa

structureand currently has 2 multi-aged units. The staff Construction - 1972
emphasi zesindividudizationin mathematicsand language
artsand plansgroup work around themesthat have build- Principal: Mary Hines 1972

ing-wideinterest. Inthe 1975-76 school year thethemes
will be centered around bicentennia activities.

The building wasnamed in honor of Dr. E. Parrish
Lovegoy whowasalong timeschool physicianfor theDes
MoinesPublic Schools. A brief synopsisof Dr. Lovgoy’s
backgroundfollows:

E. PARISH LOVEJOY

Born October 20, 1901 at Rippey, lowa-the son of Dr.
H.E. Lovejoy and Mrs. MevaMcCool Loveoy. At ageof 8
hemoved, with hisfamily to Colorado.

On October 31, 1926, hewasmarried to MissEvelyn
MercedesWildenstein of Raton, New Mexico, agraduate
of . LukesHospital School of Nursingin Denver, Colo-
rado.

On February 1, 1,927 Dr. and Mrs. Love oy cameto Des
Moineswhere he haspracticed ever sinceexcept for time
spentintheservice.

For many yearsamember of the lowa Society of Anes-
thesiologists, American Soci ety of Anesthesiologistsand
| nternational AnesthesiaResearch Society, President lowa
Society in 1948.

Served 3 yearsand 3 months during World Wer Il inthe
U. S. Naval Reserve, mostly as Chief of Anesthesiaat the
U. S.Naval Hospital at Mareldand, Californiaand Base
Hospital 15inthe South Pecific. Retiredin 1962 asa
captaininthemedical corpsof theNaval reserve.

Served asmedical examiner inthe DesMoinesPublic

Page 70



Lucas

Datesof construction --
1916, 1953, 1962

Principa swho served thisbuilding are-
1907 - 1930 SaraDavis

1930- 1933 Isabell Marshall
1933 - 1934 Edwin Miner

1934 - 1937 Robert Simpkins
1937 - 1947 Nelle Cunningham
1947 - 1952 Kathryn Blanchard
1952 - 1964 Mildred Shay
1964 - 1966 Carl Fehrle

1966 - 1970 Cecil Leonard
1970- 1971 JamesMitchell
1971 - 1974 Ruth Collins

1974 - Keith Banwart

Schoolsfrom 1928 to 1964. Since 1964 hasbeen
director of Health Services, DesMoines Independent
Community School Didrict.

Dr. Loveg oy wason thestaff of lowal utheran, lowa
Methodist, Mercy and BroadlawnsHospitals. He
formedthefirst group of M.D. anesthesiologistin Des
Moinesand wasaPast President of the Society of
Anesthesiologists of lowa. Hewas also amember of the
Board of Directorsof the DesMoinesHealth Center.

Asaschool physician hereceived great satisfaction
from examining and counseling school children. Dr.

L ove oy wasan independent person who believed that
doctorsshould givetheir best inthe care of thesick and

needly.

LUCASSCHOOL GradesK-6
1953 East 16th and Capitol
Site-5.2 acres

Theoriginal buildingwasconstructed in 1874 at East
16th and Capitoal. It was of brick veneer and had atotal
of six rooms. Theorigina siteconsisted of Lots 15, 16,
17, 18; Block 44 of Stewart’saddition. Theoriginal
building wasdestroyed by fire. Thethree-story part of
the present structurewasbuilt in 1916. The school
groundswere considerably expandedin 1952 and again
intheearly 1960 swith theremov